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Board’s Message
EERHHME

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China Best Group
Holding Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

During the year, the Group successively carried out specific work to
realize the strategic objective to transform its principal activities to
financial service sector, including (i) selling the interests in associates;
(i) acquiring licensed companies carrying out Type 1, 2, 4, 5 and 9
regulated activities in Hong Kong, and (iii) acquiring a company in the
PRC, which is capable of providing financial services, such as asset
and investment management, contributing to its share capital and
establishing its structural organization. In terms of existing business,
the money lending business experienced a slight increase, leading to
the rise in the relevant interest income; the finance leasing business
maintained interest income from existing contracts, and the consultancy
fee decreased due to lack of new contracts; the trading business
recorded a decline in the business volume as compared with last year,
confronted with the reduction of gross profit ratio; the newly acquired
licensed companies still needed to make further integration and adjust
strategic directions, and their revenues from August 2017 when the
acquisition was completed to the end of year have not made significant
contributions to the Group yet; the freight forwarding business with a
small proportion had a basically similar performance. In the aspect of
securities investment, the Group continuously sold the held-for-trading
listed securities during the year, and reallocated its resources according
to strategic needs, including the payment for the consideration of
aforesaid licensed companies with part of the proceeds.

Looking forward, the geopolitical risks, European and American fiscal
and monetary policies, and potential changes of global capital flow
will continue to bring challenges to the financial market. It is predicted
that the future will be filled with both challenges and opportunities.
The Group will make full preparations to grasp the new growth
opportunities. In addition, after the resignation of the former Chairman
Mr. Tan Xiangdong, the Group has been proactively seeking for proper
candidates for the new board chairman. The new chairman will be
announced when appointed.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to the management, our employees and partners for
their contributions to the development of the Group as well as to
shareholders for their continued support to the Company. With the
support and contributions from all parties, the Group will continue to
strive for the best to achieve a better performance and create greater
value for shareholders!

Li Yang
Deputy Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Year ended
BEUTHEHILLEE
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
+=-—H=+—H +=—A=+—8H
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEATT
Financial Results Highlight B EERE
Continuing operations HERSEXR
Turnover LT 537.5 641.3
Other operating gain/(loss) (net) Hipsea e/ (E18) OF38) 8.5 (3.9)
Total expenses X i 4aEE (74.6) (73.2)
Gain on disposal of asset classified as HEDHEARELEEEZ
held for sale & 0.3 =
Gain on disposal of an associate B — B A A Az e 29.4 =
Share of losses of associates DB R B E5 18 (2.2) (10.9)
Net profit(loss) before tax & RIBRBRIBRIFERER A Z
non-controlling interests A (EE)FE 32.5 (8.7)
— from continuing operations —RERBELCEER 32.5 (16.5)
— from discontinued operation —REERIEREED - 7.8
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to A2 T #E & A FE{h F REF
owners of the Company (E#8) 24.5 (10.5)
— from continuing operations —~-REBELEED 24.5 (18.8)
— from discontinued operation —REBRIEEEER - 8.3
As at
i
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
—ZE—tHF T —RF
+t=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—8
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Extract of Financial Position B 7 AR O 6 8%
Total assets BEMAE 1,163.9 1,056.7
Total liabilities BERE (76.6) (31.1)
Net current assets mENEEFE 976.9 874.9
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KRS 173.3 170.2
Total net assets BEFEERE 1,087.4 1,025.6
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's turnover was
approximately HK$537.5 million, representing a decrease of 16.2%
as compared with HK$641.3 million last year. The net profit for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately HK$24.5 million
comparing with the net loss of approximately HK$11.1 million last year.
The net profit was mainly attributable to, among other things, gain on
disposal of an associate (East Favor Global Investment Limited (“East
Favor”)) of approximately HK$29.4 million recognised in 2017. The
details of such disposal are set out in the paragraph headed “Material
Acquisition and Disposal” below.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Finance Leasing Business

The Group commenced its finance leasing business in July 2015 and
has been engaged in providing finance lease services in the PRC.
The sale and lease back arrangement is the main business model for
existing customers. The leased assets primarily consist of plant and
equipment, motor vehicle and other tangible assets. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the turnover of the Group’s finance leasing business
amounted to approximately HK$28.6 million (2016: approximately
HK$42.2 million) whereas segment profit of approximately HK$14.8
million was achieved (2016: approximately HK$6.5 million).

Money Lending Business

The Group holds a money lenders licence in Hong Kong and provides
loan facilities to prospective customers including enterprises and
individuals. This segment has begun to generate returns to the Group
since April 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the turnover
of the Group’s money lending business amounted to approximately
HK$32.1 million (2016: approximately HK$16.6 million). Corresponding
segment profit of approximately HK$23.7 million was made for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: approximately HK$13.0 million).

M=

HE-_Z—+E&+-_A=+—HILEE"
N5 B 7 & E 584 /537,500,000 7T © 8
X F 2641,300,00078 TR 22 16.2% © & =
Bt F+ - A=+—BIFEZHA
SHEEAH) £24,500,000/8 7T ¢ 1 = F B B8k 15
B 18 F EE#911,100,0008 7T © 8115 % A 58
FEFAR (AR BEHE)RZZE—LFER
HE—RHEE QR (RERKIREBR AR
([FHE]) ) 2 Z5#929,400,000% 7T ° 3%
EZFHBERTNERA [EAKERTE
EIH| —fhe

XK EEE

MEHEER
AEER-_ZE—HGFLtAHEERERE
X% UTRPBENSREREEERS -
ERHETHEARRBEEP CcEEXBHE
XN-HEEEFTZRRBELSEE  RE
FEMBEFEE-#HE T —tF+=A
—+—HIEFE TASEREREER
B 528,600,000 7T (ZE— /N F
#342,200,0007% 7T ) * 1 9 2B A1 B 8% 15 49
14,800,000/ 7T ( == — 754 : 496,500,000
BIL) °

EEEXK
REEHEEEREARRBRLRBED
¥LNBAERZBERFREERRE -
ko HEE T —AFHOARRAKAK
EEELRFK - HE-_ZT—+F+ - A
—t+t—HLEFE AEEEBEEXEHK2E
#5649 532,100,00008 T ( ZF — /N F -
#916,600,0008 L) cHE =T —+t&F
+ - A=+—BLFE BSBHESS
i A 923,700,000 0 (ZF — R F 4
13,000,0005 7T ) °



BEEEZERERAR 2017F#H

Management Discussion and Analysis

Brokerage Business

On 14 August 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of several
companies which are principally engaged in the provision of financial
including securities and futures dealing, margin financing,
asset management and stock broking in Hong Kong. Since then the
Group provides brokerage services for securities and futures traded on
exchanges in Hong Kong and major overseas countries. For the year

services,

ended 31 December 2017, the turnover of the Group’s brokerage
business amounted to approximately HK$1.3 million. Corresponding
segment loss of approximately $4.2 million was made for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Trading Business

The Group trades goods, including fuel oil, radio system and electronic
appliance, in the PRC and Hong Kong. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the turnover of the Group’s trading business amounted to
approximately HK$356.9 million (2016: approximately HK$423.6
million) whereas the gross profit was approximately HK$7.3 million
(2016: approximately HK$10.9 million). The Group recorded a profit of
approximately HK$1.5 million (2016: approximately HK$3.9 million) in
this segment.

Securities Investment Business

It represents trading of listed equity securities in the Hong Kong stock
market and dividend income (if any) from such listed equity securities.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the turnover of the Group's
securities investment business amounted to approximately HK$112.0
million (2016: approximately HK$153.1 million). During the year, the
Group recorded a realised loss of approximately HK$3.3 million (2016:
realised gain of approximately HK$1.5 million) and a net unrealised
fair value loss of the listed securities of approximately HK$1.6 million
(2016: net unrealised fair value gain of approximately HK$29.4 million).
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not receive any
dividend income (2016: nil). As at 31 December 2017, the Group held
trading securities with value of approximately HK$16.4 million (2016:
approximately HK$115.3 million).
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Freight Forwarding Business

This segment represents the provision of international air and sea
freight forwarding and logistic services to customers in Singapore
and America. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the turnover of
the Group’s freight forwarding business amounted to approximately
HK$6.6 million (2016: approximately HK$5.8 million). Corresponding
gross profit of approximately HK$1.9 million and segment loss of
approximately HK$3,000 were made for the year ended 31 December
2017 respectively (2016: gross profit of approximately HK$1.8 million
and segment loss of approximately HK$0.1 million).

OUTLOOK

On 14 August 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of several
companies which are principally engaged in the provision of financial
services, including securities and futures dealing, margin financing, asset
management and stock broking in Hong Kong. This is one of significant
steps taken by the Group for transforming its principal activities into the
financial service sector. After completion of the aforesaid transaction,
the Group is eligible to carry on regulated business activities governed
by the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), namely, Type 1 regulated activity (dealing in securities),
Type 2 regulated activity (dealing in futures contracts), Type 4 regulated
activity (advising on securities), Type 5 regulated activity (advising on
futures contracts), and Type 9 regulated activity (asset management). It
is expected that these new business units will enjoy substantial growth
opportunity by leveraging resources and the network of the Group and
could provide a diversified source of income for the Group.

The Group will continue reviewing its strategy of and resources
allocation for respective business segments and developments. The
Group will prioritise its resources into growing businesses. Apart from
existing business operation, the Group will from time to time explore
investment opportunities for business development of the Group in the
financial sector. The Board is convinced that it is the fundamental basis
on which the Company generates and preserves value over the longer
term and the strategy for delivering the objectives of the Company. The
Board will closely monitor the business environment with the aim to
maximise the returns of the shareholders of the Company.
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LIQUIDITY AND CASHFLOW RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the equity and net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,087.4 million (2016: approximately
HK$1,025.6 million) and HK$976.9 million (2016: approximately
HK$874.9 million) respectively. On the same date, the Group had
bank balances and cash of approximately HK$173.3 million (2016:
approximately HK$170.2 million) and the current ratio was 13.76 (2016:
29.16).

The Group has sufficient and readily available financial resources for
both general working capital purposes and existing business plan.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, none of the Group’s securities was
pledged to brokers to secure the margin loan. As at 31 December 2017
and 2016, there were no other significant assets pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group incurred
approximately HK$1.3 million as capital expenditure (2016:
approximately HK$3.0 million).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had no material capital
commitment.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held available-for-sale investments
of approximately HK$14.6 million (2016: approximately HK$13.8
million) and held for trading investments of approximately HK$16.4
million (2016: approximately HK$115.3 million).
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RZZE—+F+-_A=+—H8 AEFHF
At EE KR E#14,600,0008 L (= F
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115,300,000/ 7T ) ©

Unrealised
loss on Total
Realised fair value investment
Number of shares held % of shareholding loss change Fair value % of Net Assets Dividend received st
(000) (%) (HKS'000) (HKS'000) (HKS'000) (HKS000) (%) (HKS000) (HKS'000) (HKS'000)
AVEREY
fikRA%A ERES BERER  ARAER AT EREREZAM BhRe EECEES
(TR) (%) (F&R) (&7 (F%7) i) () (F&m) (Fm) (F#7)
For the For the For the For the
Asat Asat Asat Asat  yearended  yearended Asat hsat Asat Asat yearended year ended Asat
31422017 31.12.2016 31422017 31.12.2016 3422017 31122017 31120017 31.12.2016 3422017 31.12.2016 31422017 31.12.2016 31422017
BEZE-tF BECR-tf BECE-tF I RE
R=®-tF  RoT-AF R®-tE RCTRE tZAZT-R fASt-B 0 HOR-tE R-8-t§F  RIRRE $IASt-B fIRSH-R RCR-tF
Company Name/Stock Code RAAR/RARS tzB=t-B f2A=t-B t=B=t-R f2A=1-B LEE LEE tZA=t-8 B t2Rzt-R 12 5§ 5% t=A=t-A
Hegance OptcalIntermationalHoldings Limted REBERDFI0)
907) (EOM') 121) 7800 % - (1.624) 16380 - 151 - 18,004
Others 3294 - 115,266 - 124 -
Total 3t (3,294) (1,64) 16,380 115,266 151 1.4 18,004

Based on public information available at the website of the Stock
Exchange as at the date of this report, EOIH is principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of optical frames and sunglasses, property
investment, securities investment, money lending and film distribution.

The Group’s available-for-sale investments as at 31 December 2017
comprised of (i) listed equity investment in London at a fair value of
approximately HK$7.1 million; and (i) unlisted equity securities in
Hong Kong at cost less impairment loss, i.e. the carrying amount of
approximately HK$7.5 million.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, all financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss represented listed securities in Hong Kong. As at
31 December 2017, the Group recorded an unrealised fair value loss of
approximately HK$1.6 million in respect of investment in listed securities
held for trading.

The Board acknowledges that the performance of the equities may
be affected by the degree of volatility in the Hong Kong stock market
and susceptible to other external factors that may affect their values.
Accordingly, in order to mitigate possible financial risks related to the
equities, the Board will continue to closely monitor the performance of
its investment portfolio from time to time.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

(i)

(ii)

On 24 January 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
“Purchaser”), ZR
International Holding Company Limited (the “Vendor”) and
Mr. Wu Qiaofeng, both independent third parties, entered into
an agreement pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally
agreed to purchase and the Vendor conditionally agreed to
sell the entire equity interest in each of the target companies
at a tentative consideration of HK$200,000,000 (subject to
adjustment), which would be satisfied by cash. With reference to
the audit result of management accounts of the target companies
as at the completion date, there was no adjustment to the
tentative consideration and, as such, the final consideration was
HK$200,000,000. The principal activities of the target companies
are securities margin financing, securities brokerage services and

China Best Financial Holdings Limited (the

futures dealing services. The acquisition was completed on 14
August 2017.

Further details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 January 2017 and 14 August 2017.

On 13 March 2017, Kang Yong International Limited (“Kang
Yong”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Honghu Group Limited
as purchaser, and Mr. Deng Junjie as guarantor, to sell its
shareholding in East Favor, representing 49% of the entire issued
capital of East Favor, at the consideration of HK$120,000,000. The
disposal was completed on 20 March 2017.

Further details of the disposal are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 13 March 2017 and 20 March 2018.
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(iii)

(iv)

On 13 March 2017, Rongjinda Finance Lease Company Limited
(“Rongjinda Finance”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and two independent third parties entered into an agreement
pursuant to which Rongjinda Finance agreed to purchase and
the two independent third parties agreed to sell the entire equity
interest in a company established in the PRC, which is allowed to
carry on businesses of assets management and advisory services
in relation to corporate restructure, merger and acquisition, at
a token consideration of RMB3. The transaction was completed
on 14 March 2017. Since completion and up to the date of this
report, it has not commenced business. According to its articles of
association, Rongjinda Finance as its sole shareholder is committed
to inject capital of a total of RMB10,000,000 (approximately
HK$11,516,000). As at 31 December 2017, RMB2,500,000
(approximately HK$2,879,000) was injected as its paid up capital.

During the year, an investment in associate with carrying amount
of approximately HK$10,760,000 classified in assets held for sale
as at 31 December 2016 was repurchased by an existing major
shareholder of the associate and the proceeds of approximately
JPY159,241,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,041,000) was
received by the Group on 20 March 2017.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition or

disposal (including the acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

The Company did not conduct any fund raising activities during the year.

(iii)

(iv)
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. During
the year, there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rates of
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars whereas Renminbi had an upward
adjustment, resulting in an exchange gain of approximately HK$28.9
million recognised as other comprehensive income of the Group. The
Group will take a prudent approach against any impact arising from
the fluctuation in exchange rates but currently is not engaged in any
derivative activities and not committed to any financial instruments to

hedge its balance sheet exposure.

EMPLOYEE AND HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 62 staff (2016: 55 staff). The
total staff cost incurred for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$34.3 million (2016: approximately HK$29.2 million).
The remuneration of employees was determined with reference to
the qualification and experience of individual staff member, market
circumstances and the Group's performance. In accordance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), the staff of the Company’s accounting and financial

reporting function have adequate training programmes and budget.

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted on 22 May 2012 (the
“2012 Share Option Scheme”), the Board may grant options to directors
(including non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), employees of the Company and any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies, to subscribe for shares of the Company. During
the year, no options were granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
25 May 2018 to Friday, 1 June 2018 (both days inclusive), during
which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify to be
shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting to be held on Friday, 1 June 2018, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 24 May 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Audit Committee in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Ru Xiangan,
Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui, the three independent non-
executive directors of the Company. A summary of duties and works of
the Audit Committee is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control
and financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor, SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has fully
complied with the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, with
deviation from code provisions A.2.1, A.6.7 and C.2.5. Details of the
Company’s corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining the
Group's risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and for reviewing the effectiveness of such on
an annual basis under Code Provision C.2.1.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to attain and maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholders’ value and safeguard shareholders’
interests. The Group’s corporate governance principles emphasize
a quality Board, effective internal control and accountability to
shareholders.

The Board believes that good corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting shareholder value
and investor confidence.

The Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the principles of good
corporate governance and two levels of corporate governance practices:

(@) code provisions which listed issuers are expected to comply with or
to give considered reasons for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices for guidance only, which listed issuers
are encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for
deviation.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles, code provisions and certain recommended best practices as
set out in the CG Code.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for
the deviations from code provisions A.2.1, A.6.7 and C.2.5 which are
explained in the relevant paragraphs in this report.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and to
review its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure
they comply with the CG Code and align with the latest developments
of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors should
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board sets policy direction and approves strategies/operational plans
to ensure effective functioning and growth of the Company, in the
interests of all shareholders.

Every director shall ensure that he/she carries out his/her duty in
good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including: the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view
to ensuring that the Board’s procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the executive directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the executive directors and the senior
management to discharge its responsibility.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and to
the exercising of independent judgment.

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises four
executive directors and three independent non-executive directors. Save
as disclosed in the section of “Biographical Details of Directors”of this
report, members of the Board do not have any relationship with any
other director.

The list of all directors and their biographies are set out under the
section of “Corporate Information” and “Biographical Details of
Directors” on page 2 and page 40 respectively and in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director for his independence pursuant to
the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 and
other requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience and skills,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functions. Independent non-executive directors are invited to
serve on the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees of the
Company.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are set out in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors. Details of the Nomination Committee and its
work performed during the year are set out in the “Board Committees”
section below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment.

In accordance with clause 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Liu
Wei, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Pursuant to requirement in Code provision A.6.1, each newly appointed
director should receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment. Subsequently he or she should receive any briefing
and professional development necessary to ensure that he or she has a
proper understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he or she is fully aware of his or her responsibilities and
obligations under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal
and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.

The Board recognises the importance of directors’ training and all
directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, all directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training courses and/or reading
reference materials on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations:
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Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Chairman) BRAREE (FE) (RZF—+F v v

(Resigned on 3 April 2017) /A= HEHF)
Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman) FExE (FIFE) v 4
Mr. Liu Wei 2B LA 4 v
Mr. Chen Wei PRIZ A v 4
Mr. Fan Jie (Appointed on 24 January 2017)  BE&AE (R-ZF—+F v v
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Attending expert
briefings/seminars/

conferences
relevant to the
Reading regulatory business or
updates director’s duties
HEBRERR
ESHEN
MEEERERZ EXREHHEE
& E R me gE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Ru Xiangan MR EE v v
Mr. Liu Haiping 28 EAE v v
Mr. Liu Tonghui 2Ify 18 5k & v v
MEETINGS =
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance EZHEHAEEH ELF

During the year, regular Board meetings were held for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Most important resolutions agreed in Board meetings were made by
all directors including both executive and independent non-executive
directors.
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The attendance records of each director at the meetings of the EW Ri% AR RS - ﬁ%% ET R

shareholders, the Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration EB& MI*,\ = }E% BEeRHITEE
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee (,?J'ii == %) Z @ A fE 8%
(for corporate governance functions) during the year are set out below: ZZDT :

Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

BlE/RERLEZER
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Executive
Shareholders Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors EEpg BE EER BiZEE §HMzEe REZEE UhZEE
(Note)
(HH)
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Chairman) BAREE(FE) Not Applicable 23 Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable
(Resigned on 3 April 2017) (R-F—+% TER TER Qi TER TER
A= AgH)
Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman) 2GkE(FLE) 0 4/5  Not Applicable 2 2 0
TER
Mr. Liu Wei b 17 5/5  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 171
TER TER TER
Mr. Chen Wei BRELE 171 5/5 Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 171
TER TER TR
Mr. Wang Jian TRk Not Applicable 0/1  Not Applicable  Not Applicable ~ Not Applicable ~ Not Applicable
(Resigned on 24 January 2017) (RZZT—+F TER TER TR T TER
—RZ+MART)
Mr. Fan Jie L 171 5/5  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 171
(Appointed on 24 January 2017)  (R=ZF—+% TER TR TER
—AZTEHBEZE)
Independent Non-Executive BUkynEs
Directors
Mr. Ru Xiangan HHREE 0 5/5 22 22 22 Not Applicable
TR
Mr. Liu Haiping ABREE 0 1/5 10 01 072 Not Applicable
TEA
Mr. Liu Tonghui 2 EE L 0/1 5/5 22 20 212 Not Applicable
TER
Note: Among meetings of the Executive Committee, one meeting was held for the eE: RBRMITERESCZESHT § XSHIMETT
purpose of performing the corporate governance duties and the attendance of TEERBEMBIT WITZESKELF I
the members of the Executive Committee at this meeting is disclosed under the REHEZIBERERECEEATRHE-
CG Code.
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Under Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Due to various work commitments, one executive director
and three independent non-executive directors of the Company were
unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 1 June 2017.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Chairman and the Company Secretary attend almost all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable period of
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.
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According to the current Board practice, any material transaction which
involves a material conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a director will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting and independent non-executive directors who,
and whose associates, have no material interest in the transaction are
present at the board meeting.

The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring directors to
abstain from voting (nor be counted in the quorum) at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

From 1 January to 3 April 2017, the role of the chairman was performed
by Mr. Tan Xiangdong, who provided leadership for the Board and was
responsible for chairing meetings, managing the operations of the Board
and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues were discussed by the
Board in a timely and constructive manner. He was also responsible for
the strategic management of the Group and for formulating the Group's
overall corporate direction and focus. Since the resignation of Mr. Tan
Xiangdong as the chairman and the executive director of the Company
on 3 April 2017, the Company has not appointed a new chairman of
the Board. Until the appointment of the new chairman of the Board,
the Board collectively focuses on the overall strategic planning and
development of the Group and effective functioning of the Board.

The Company currently has no chief executive officer as the Board
has not identified a suitable candidate to fill this causal vacancy.
However, the Board believed that the existing structure together with
the extensive experience of the Board was conducive to strong and
consistent leadership, enabling the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and efficiently.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Company has four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Executive Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. Save for the
Executive Committee, the terms of reference of the other Board
committees are made available to shareholders on the websites of
the Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(http://www.cbgroup.com.hk) respectively.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company'’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Ru Xiangan.

Among the committee members, one of them possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. None of the members of the Audit Committee is
a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

e To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, internal auditor (if
any) or external auditors before submission to the Board;

e To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms
of engagement, their independence and objectivity, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; and

e To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year to review the
half-yearly and annual financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report on the Company’s internal control
and risk management review and processes and the re-appointment of
the external auditors.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee are set out under the
section “Meetings” in this report.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2017
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive director, namely
Mr. Li Yang and all three independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui. The Chairman of
the Nomination Committee is Mr. Li Yang.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

e To review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

e  To develop and formulate relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors and senior management;

e To identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors and
senior management;

e To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
reappointment of and succession planning for directors and senior
management; and

e To assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships and senior management
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
and made recommendations to the Board in accordance with the
Nomination Committee’s written terms of reference. The Nomination
Committee considers that board appointments are based on merit and
candidates are considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive director, namely
Mr. Li Yang and all three independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui. The Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Ru Xiangan.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or
any of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the individual
performance and the operating results of the Company as well as the
market conditions and practice.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination or making
recommendation of the annual remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management and other related matters
when needs arise. The Human Resources Division is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Board about these recommendations on remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year to
review the remuneration packages of the directors and the senior
management and made recommendation to the Board in accordance
with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee comprises all executive directors of the
Company.

The Executive Committee has been conferred upon with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved for
the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the Group and
has been assigned with the responsibilities to perform the corporate
governance duties including but not limited to:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board,;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the directors and
employees;

to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

to conform to any requirement, direction,
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.

regulation that may

During the year, the policies of the corporate governance of the
Company were reviewed by the Executive Committee.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 13(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the senior management for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 are set out in note 13(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made on all directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view and that relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The management of the Company provides such explanation and
information to the Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of the Company
which were put to the Board for approval.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 59.

An analysis of the remuneration of the Company’s auditors, SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited, for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out as
follows:

ShEE A BB

BREARRBINEZ AN R E ARG B
BRZABBEMFEHNBAFNESIR
Z BB HRE] -

BE_T—tFT-_A=1t—"BULEFE XK
REZBENE KPR (FE) @FTHIE AT
BRABIAEMSHNDTEIIAT

Fee paid/
payable

for services
rendered
BRARBEN
ENAHER
HK$'000

FHET

ZBURTS
h H == B AR 75
HAMR5R T

Audit services
Interim review services
Other ad-hoc assignments

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board
oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems. The systems and
internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Group has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group. Business
units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with their respective units. The results of evaluation will
be reported to management through regular internal meetings. Each
year, management prepares the risk assessment report listing the risks
identified and management’s assessment on the impact to the Group.
The Board discusses findings in the risk assessment report and evaluates
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system in
Board meetings. The Board also reviews and monitors the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems on a regular basis
to ensure that the systems in place are adequate.

The key elements of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems include the following:

e  the organizational structure is clearly defined with distinct lines of
authority and control responsibilities;

o a comprehensive financial accounting system has been established
to provide for performance measurement indicators and to ensure
compliance with relevant rules;

e  the senior management shall prepare annual plans on financial
reporting, operations and compliance aspects by reference to
potential significant risks;

o unauthorized expenditures and release of confidential information
are strictly prohibited;

o specific approval by executive director prior to commitment is
required for all material matters; and

o the management shall review and evaluate the control process and
monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances
and identified risks.

The Group handles and disseminates inside information with due care.
Staff is required to comply with the confidentiality terms inside the
staff manual. Only personnel at appropriate level can get reach of price
sensitive and inside information. The Company regularly reminds the
directors and employees about compliance with all policies adopted by
the Company regarding inside information including the Model Code
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules in relation to dealings in
securities of the Company.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and established
to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal,
relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements.

Under the code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Group should
have an internal audit function. However, due to the size of the Group
and for cost effectiveness consideration, the Group currently does not
have an internal audit function. Instead, the Audit Committee has
a review on the internal control system annually. The review covers
major financial, operational controls in rotation basis and also the risk
management functions. No significant deficiency was identified under
current year’s review and the systems were operating effectively and
adequately. The Group continues to review the need for an internal
audit function annually.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The position of the Company Secretary is held by Mr. Ho Yu. He is
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman
of the Board from time to time. All directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures,
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. During the
year, Mr. Ho undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training to
update his skills and knowledge.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables shareholders and investors to make
a properly informed investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
inquiries.
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To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.cbgroup.com.hk, where extensive information and updates
on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant
changes made to the Company’s Bye-laws affecting its operations and
reporting practices.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, the Board, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding not less than 10% of the paid-
up capital of the Company by sending a written notice to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, shall convene a special general meeting to address specific
issues of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of
written notice. The same requirement and procedure also applies to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention can be
sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered shareholders
of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general meeting is enclosed
with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are unable to be
present at the meeting should fill out the form and return the same to
the share registrar and transfer office of the Company, so as to appoint
a representative, another shareholder or the chairman of the meeting as
their proxy.
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The Group is pleased to present its Environment, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
demonstrate its commitment to sustainable development in aspects of
environment, social and governance (the “ESG"). This ESG report is
prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules, which covers two subject areas, Environmental and
Social.
Annual Report for details of corporate governance of the Group.

Please also refer to the Corporate Governance Report in this

The Group has complied with the “Comply or Explain” provisions set
out in the ESG Reporting Guide for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group is engaged in (i) trading of fuel oil, electronic devices and
other commodities, (i) the finance leasing business, (iii) the money
lending business, (iv) the brokerage business, (v) international air and
sea freight forwarding and the provision of logistics services, and (vi)
trading of securities. As set out in this Annual Report, the Group has
transformed its principal activities into the financial service sector. This
ESG report covers the Company and its major subsidiaries engaging in
principal business activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL
Use of Resources

Although the Group’s principal businesses have no significant impact
on the environment, the Group recognizes importance of environmental
sustainability and endeavours to minimize the impact of business
on environment through adopting numerous energy-saving and
conservation initiatives. The Group’s policy is to ensure compliance
with applicable environmental laws and regulations and minimize its
environmental footprint through efficient use of resources and adoption
of pro-environmental management. The Group’s operation is mainly
office-based and its eco-friendly measures at the office are as follows:

o staff is reminded to switch off lights and air-conditioning in the
meeting rooms and computers at workstations when not in use;

e whenever possible, documents are handled electronically other
than physical papers;

° staff is reminded to save water;

o staff is encouraged to reuse paper printed on one side and duplex
printing and copying. Data on printing and copying is regularly
reviewed to assess efficiency of paper usage;
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

o office supplies are recycled whenever possible; and

e conference calls instead of face-to-face meetings are arranged
where possible.

Emissions, Environmental and Natural Resources

As the Group’s principal businesses do not involve any direct production
procedure, there is no direct emission of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharge of wastewater and discharges into land, production of
hazardous and non hazardous waste, etc.. The main contributor to the
Group's carbon footprint is the indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
from electricity consumption, which is mainly attributed to the use of
lighting system, air-conditioning and office equipment.

Taking into account the nature of the Group’s businesses, the Board
believes that its business operations have minimal direct impact on
the environment and natural resources. The Group is not aware of any
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the reporting period.

The Group will continue to put more effort on resources saving and
strive for better protection of our environment.

The Group’s major resources consumption data for the year ended 31
December 2017 are as follows:

Total electricity consumption (kWh) 101,460
Total water consumption (cubic meter) 576
Total paper consumption (piece) 124,997

SOCIAL
Employment

The Group believes that employees are its greatest asset which is crucial
to its continuous development. The Group establishes and operates
prudent human resources policies and practices strictly in compliance
with law and regulations in respective jurisdictions where the group
entities are carrying on business. The Group updates and improves these
policies and practices regularly by taking into consideration the health
and well-being of its employees. All employees are kept abreast of any
updated policies and practices through internal memoranda.
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The Group offers competitive pay and employee benefits to attract
talented staff and use a performance-based remuneration system to
motivate and reward them in line with their contributions to growing its
business. An employee’s remuneration is determined with reference to
performance and market benchmarks. Salary levels are not differentiated
by gender. Salaries and benefits are in accordance with local minimum
wages or above. All employees are treated fairly and equally, and their
rights and interests are protected.

The Group provides and maintains various statutory benefits for its staff,
such as mandatory provident fund, medical and work injury insurance,
sick leave, funeral leave and maternity leave, etc. It regularly reviews
packages and career advancement opportunities, particularly for key
positions, to ensure continuing market competitiveness.

The Group establishes objective basis of key qualities and requirements
for candidates in its hiring processing and assess the suitability of the
candidate to avoid risks of discrimination or bias. Job openings are
also offered to all qualified employees with good work records, so as
to promote career advancement among employees as well. Consistent
criteria are applied to assess both internal and external candidates
regardless of age, sex, race, national origin or physical disabilities to
ensure fair judgment and avoid any risk of favoritism or discrimination.

All work are reasonably assigned and should be performed voluntarily
by employees, and fair and reasonable working hours are arranged to
respective staff in accordance with various job needs. All employees
may resign upon reasonable notice and should not be dismissed for
unreasonable grounds.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare during the reporting
period.

Health and Safety

Promoting the concept of a good work-life balance is essential to the
Group's philosophy for improved employee well-being. The Group
encourages its employees to advise the Group of any health and safety
issues in their workplace so that the Group can look at eliminating or
reducing the risk and finally the Group and the employees will all work
together to reduce health and safety risks to a minimum.
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The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to the provision of a safe working environment and the
protection of employees from occupational hazards during the reporting
period.

Development and Training

The Group encourages employees to attend appropriate courses to
enhance their competence for performance improvement and career
development. They are encouraged to attend appropriate external
job-related courses or to acquire higher professional qualification to
enhance their competence and performance. All new employees are
briefed by the department heads to ensure the employees are aware and
familiarize themselves with the Group’s values and goals and to ensure
the employees understand their role in the Group.

Labour Standards

The Group from time to time reviews its employment practice and
the Group’s guidelines on staff recruitment to ensure that it is in full
compliance with the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Labour
Law in the PRC and other relevant labour laws and regulations in other
jurisdictions relating to, among other things, prevention of child labour
and forced labour.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to prevention of child and forced labour during the
reporting period.

Supply Chain Management

While the Group has established good relationships with its suppliers,
the Group also offers equal opportunity to all potential business
partners. Selection criteria such as, quality and price of products,
supplier’s reputation, background and experience are key factors to
the Group’s procurement decisions. Furthermore, the Group expects its
suppliers to strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations.

Product Responsibility

The Group is responsible for its products and services and does not
engage in unfair business activities of any kind. Fraud, misleading
information, or any acts that destroy customer confidence or infringe
customer rights are strictly prohibited. The Group has also strictly
complied with relevant products and services related regulations.
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In particular, while collecting, processing and using personal data
of the Group’s customers in its financial service sector, appropriate
measures are taken to protect such data from unauthorised access and
abuse. Personal data is collected only for lawful and relevant purposes.
Employment contracts stipulate employees’ duty in safeguarding
confidential or sensitive information that they have had access to during
their employment.

All customers’ complaints will be considered, with corresponding follow-
up procedures being conducted in accordance with internal procedures
and guidelines. Relevant investigation will be taken and settlement
may be made if appropriate, and improvement will be made whenever
necessary. The Group believes that complaints are a valuable opportunity
for it to obtain feedback from the community and customers, so as to
identify the need for service and policy improvement.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress during the reporting period.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to uphold high standards on anti-corruption.
Adequate guidelines are implemented to ensure that all employees
(including directors) adhere to high standards of business and
professional and ethical conduct. All employees are encouraged to raise
any related concerns to the senior management in a strictly confidential
manner. Any matters of genuine concern are to be thoroughly
investigated and actions will be taken accordingly.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Group is compliant
with all relevant anti-money laundering laws. The risk of establishing
relationships with individuals or organisations engaged in money
laundering or terrorism activities are minimized by its ‘know your
customer’ and assessment processes. The Group has robust internal
control procedures in place to provide reasonable assurance against
fraud.

The Group holds licences or approval required for the provision of
money lending services, finance leasing services and regulated activities
under the SFO. The management supports a culture of integrity,
zero tolerance of bribery and ensures that business is conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering during
the reporting period.

Community Investment

The Group is fully aware of the importance of interacting with the wider
community in fulfilling corporate social responsibility.

The Group has been eager to take initiatives in making cash donations
to charitable organizations and supporting the local communities and
neighbors.

The Group would explore the possibility of finding suitable partners and
contributing to community and environmental protection programmes
which facilitate positive changes. The Group would also from time to
time encourage its staff to support community service activities.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman), aged 46, has been appointed as
executive director of the Company since September 2014. He obtained
a junior college degree of Electronic Engineering from Shenzhen
University. He completed an EMBA programme and obtained his EMBA
from Shenzhen College of Economics and Management (7 JI| 487 &
FBERT) . Mr. Li also completed a master degree programme of the
Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences ( #F B4t & %l £
BT 75 4 B< ) , majoring in World Economics. Mr. Li has approximately 20
years of experience in investment activities and business management.
Mr. Li has been a director of Brand Marvel Worldwide Consumer
Products Corporation (TSXV symbol: BMW), a Canadian publicly traded
company on the TSX Venture Exchange, from December 2010 to
January 2016. He is currently also assuming senior executive positions
in several capital investment or management companies. Mr. Li was
appointed as the chairman and director of Guanghe Landscape Culture
Communication Co., Ltd., Shanxi* (LL7EEM LKL EREBRDBR A
7)) shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 600234) from July 2015 to September 2016. He has also been
an independent non-executive director of Sino Haijing Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 1106) since February 2017. Mr. Li is also the director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Liu Wei, aged 45, has been appointed as executive director of the
Company since February 2016. He graduated from Renmin University of
China (FFEI AR KE) in 1996 with a degree in economics and further
completed postgraduate course in international economics from Renmin
University of China (FREI AR AXE) in 2000. From 1996 to 2014, Mr.
Liu worked in various roles at Bank of Communications, Beijing Branch
(RBIRTTILRMHTT) including as a manager at the international trade
department and the credit department, the head of the investment
banking division of Beijing Branch, and the manager of a sub-branch.
During Mr. Liu's tenure at Bank of Communications, Mr. Liu was mainly
involved in international trade settlement, local and foreign currencies
loans, personal, corporate and inter-bank financing and investment
banking businesses, and was a committee member of Beijing branch’s
credit committee and innovation business committee. Since June 2014,
Mr. Liu has been with Zhongrong International Trust Co., Ltd* (/R
BB E7E AR A AF)) (“Zhongrong Trust”) as executive president in
charge of its trust investment department, with responsibilities involving
alternative asset management, merger and restructuring in capital
markets, sector-specific funds, asset securitizations, structuring financing
and other businesses. Mr. Liu is also the director of several subsidiaries
of the Company.
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Mr. Chen Wei, aged 37, has been appointed as executive director
of the Company since February 2016. He graduated from Yunnan
University (ZFI K2 ) with a degree in law in 2002 and further
obtained a master degree in law from Peking University (1t 5 A2) in
2012. Mr. Chen obtained his PRC law qualification in 2001 and further
obtained his PRC Certified Public Accountants qualification in 2012.
From 2002 to 2004, Mr. Chen worked as a legal counsel at a state-
owned enterprise located in Hangzhou. From 2004 to 2012, Mr. Chen
worked as a lawyer at a law firm located in Beijing and was mainly
involved in corporate legal affairs and litigation matters. Since 2012,
Mr. Chen has been with Zhongrong Trust as the vice general manager
of the trust investment department and is mainly responsible for project
investment and management. Mr. Chen is the sole director of Sungi
Global Investment Co., Ltd, which holds 200,000,000 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 2.75% of the total issued share
capital of the Company at the date of this report. Mr. Chen is also the
director of several subsidiaries of the Company and is designated to
oversee the Company'’s risk control and compliance matters.

Mr. Fan lJie, aged 43, has been appointed as executive director of
the Company since January 2017. He holds a Master's Degree in
Business Administration in Tsinghua University School of Economics
and Management and a Bachelor’s Degree in International Economic
in Renmin University of China. Mr. Fan has over 20 years of experience
in strategic marketing and project management. He has been with
Zhongrong Trust as the Managing Director of the Trust and Investment
Department since 2014. Mr. Fan was a corporate partner and the vice
president of the Strategic Marketing Division of Adfaith Management
Consulting Inc* (L RIEMBF R EEFRZAAEFR 2 E]) from 2009
to 2014 and an assistant to the general manager for medical business
in an enterprise located in Jiangxi Province, the PRC, from 2003 to
2005. In 2000 to 2002, he was appointed as the sales and distribution
officer of the Department of Medical System of an international
conglomerate. Prior to 2000, he worked as a marketing leader in the
Nanchang Office of a renowned food and beverage company for about
three years. Currently, Mr. Fan is the Managing Director of the Strategic
Development Department of the Group.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ru Xiangan, aged 49, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since October 2016. He holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting in North China University of
Technology. He is a certified public accountant in the PRC and have
approximately 23 years of experience in accounting and finance and
approximately 10 years of experience in insurance. He has been serving
as the head of the audit department in Chang An Property and Liability
Insurance Limited* (REZ B ERBRBR A F) (“Chang An”) since
2014, prior to which he was appointed as the general manager of the
Zhejiang branch from 2013 to 2014 and the general manager of the
accounting department and the financial chief from 2007 to 2013.
Before joining Chang An, he served as the general manager assistant
in Beijing Zhongjing Surety Company* (1t A FTIREFEERAF]) , the
chief financial officer in Heng Tong Group* ({E#@% &), the deputy
chief financial officer in Beijing Beichen Innovation and Technology City
Limited* (4t mibRBIFT & EHRIK A F)) , the financial manager in San
Jiu Auto Group* (ZNABEZEABR AR, and the deputy financial
chief in Beijing Building Materials Factory* (4t R W &4 &4 G 48 i) .

Mr. Liu Haiping, aged 43, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since April 2016. He graduated from
Fudan University with a bachelor’s degree in international economics
law in 1997 and obtained a master degree in international trade law
from Bond University, Australia in 2005. He has approximately 20 years
of experience in the legal sector. During the period from July 1997
to March 2009, he had served as an associate and later a partner in
Beijing Jiancheng Law Firm (db R &2 EMEHFT) . He joined Beijing
Dacheng Law Offices (3t R A ZAD FEHFT) in April 2009 and is
currently a senior partner of the firm. He is also the deputy executive of
the Banking Law Professional Committee (#R1T3A2 R %% 8€ ) under
the Beijing Lawyers Association (1t R AT ) .
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Liu Tonghui, aged 55, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since April 2016. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in international politics and a master degree in
international relations from Tokyo International University in 1995
and 1997 respectively. He has approximately 20 years of extensive
experience in investment activities and business management. During
the period between 1997 to 1998, he served as the representative of
Nippon Howaito Cooperation* (A N8 H G & # X €4L) in China.
He had been working as the deputy general manager in each of
Shouchuang Longji Company Limited* ( & AIZEE XD BR A A ) from
1998 to 2004 and Huajian Dongfang Software Company Limited* ( Z52
BEEFEREEZAE) from 2005 to 2008, respectively. He has been
the general manager of Tangshan Haigang Xingerui Company Limited*
(BILEBHEHmAEMREML2AA) since 2009 and the assistant president
of Unisplendour Corporation Limited * ( XYt DBRAR]) since 2012,
which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000938).
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 68 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified in
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong), including a fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion on
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Company that have occurred since the
end of the financial year and future development in the Company's
business and analysis using financial key performance indicators, are
set out in the sections headed “Board's Message”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.
The above sections form an integral part of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and suppliers are keys
to its sustainable growth and development. The Group is committed to
establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees, providing
quality services to its customers and enhancing cooperation with its
suppliers.

Employees

Employees are crucial assets of the Group. The Group strives to
enhance employees’ sense of belonging and loyalty to the Group. The
Group provides a fair, healthy and safe workplace, promotes diversity,
provides competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also aims to commit resources to providing employment training and
development opportunities so that they can keep abreast of the latest
development of the market and the industry and, at the same time,
improve their skills and performance in their respective positions and
build up confidence and self-esteem. The Group also values and is open
to receiving feedback from employees with an aim to foster a good and
long-lasting relationship.

Customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services in a
way that satisfy needs and requirements of the customers. The Group
strives to enhance the relationship with customers by continuous
interaction and communication with customers so that the Group can
respond proactively to cater for customers’ needs. The Group has also
established procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints to
ensure customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely
manner. During the year under review, the Group has maintained good
relationship with its customers.

Suppliers

The Group is also dedicated to developing a good relationship with
suppliers and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure
stability of the Group’s business. The Group reinforces business
partnerships with suppliers and contractors by ongoing communication
in a proactive and effective manner so as to ensure quality and timely
delivery. During the year under review, the Group has worked closely
with its suppliers and maintained good relationships with them.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the Company
is subject to relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda. In addition, the
Company is registered as a non-Hong Kong Company under Part 16
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) and
therefore is subject to the relevant provisions under the Companies
Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including the
disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions therein.

Under the SFO, the Company is required to maintain a register of
interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to disclose
price sensitive or inside information.

The Group is principally engaged in (i) trading of fuel oil, electronic
devices and other commodities, (ii) the finance leasing business, (iii) the
money lending business, (iv) the brokerage business, (v) international air
and sea freight forwarding and the provision of logistics services, and
(vi) trading of securities, in Hong Kong, the PRC and other jurisdictions,
and therefore is subject to the relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, the PRC and other jurisdictions where the Group entities are
carrying on businesses.

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the year, there was no material breach of or noncompliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares (the “Shares”) during the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, in the opinion of the directors, the Company
had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2016: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Chairman)
(Resigned on 3 April 2017)
Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Liu Wei
Mr. Chen Wei
Mr. Fan Jie (Appointed on 24 January 2017)

Mr. Wang Jian (Resigned on 24 January 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ru Xiangan
Mr. Liu Haiping
Mr. Liu Tonghui

In accordance with clause 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Liu
Wei, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the annual general meeting.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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The term of office of each independent non-executive director is 3-year
period commencing from respective appointment date, subject to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are still independent.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long position in share options of the Company

BERBUFNTESZEHRREERER
HE=F RERBARRZARMAAAR
18 & R B o o

ARAFREWRBZEBBILIFATEERE L
MARRNEINERRE BT 2 FERE
R ARARBERBUIFNTESE
B AL

EERFETBRAERKG A
ERORBEERE ZEZRAR

N—E—+E+-_fA=+—H AQAIES
R EBITHABRARF] Sk H R85 % =
(EERAEBHKHEEGIEXVES) 2R G
R D REEED  BELERAQR)IR
BEA N EIGEHEIS2GEFE 2 Bk
BIEIZAESF A B A S AR R KRB P2
wmEORBIAT

RADABREZGFR

Percentage of the

Interest in issued share capital
Name of Director Capacity underlying shares of the Company
RN
BEEnR g% HEROER ERITREBDL
Mr. Li Yang Beneficial Owner 10,034,030 0.14%
FHEE ExEEA
Note: Bt o -

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 7,264,566,267 shares of the Company in
issue as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTIONS
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme

(b)
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A share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme"”) was

adopted by the Company on 18 March 2002. The 2002 Share
Option Scheme expired on 17 March 2012. Upon the expiry of the
2002 Share Option Scheme, no further options would be granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme but the options granted
prior to such expiry continued to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
Particulars of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements of the share options
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year:

AARRZEZE_F= A+ N\ BER
ERESE ([T - FERE
g) 2T —FEREFEIN =
——F =R+ tRAEm-FET=F
B EERE  AARBTERE
—TE  FRERERT B TR
REmBHAEREZEREDNESR
WRARE T —FERENE 2
BT — T —FERE S
BENERE SRR MIE32A

TRBEE T _FREREASITE
BRERFRNZEE:

Forfeited/
Exercise price  Outstandingasat ~ Granted during  Exercised during Lapsed during  Outstanding as at
Date of grant Exercisable period (HKS per Share) 1.1.2017 the year the year the year 31.12.2017
R-E-t& R=B-t&F
EE -B-8 +ZB=+-8
REAH A (Br8R) AT ERRH FRGE FRRK/ AN HATE
Other eligible persons 20.8.2007 20.8.2007 t0 20.8.2017 0.5768 29,585,058 - - (29,585,058) -
EAERAL “2RLEAA=TH - FNA-THE
tENAZTH
7.9.2007 7.9.2007 t0 7.9.2017 0.6297 14,670,276 = - (14,670,276) -
“EERLEARLR FNALRZE
“E-tENALAE
28.9.2007 28.9.2007 t0 28.9.2017 0.6788 4,890,092 - - (4,890,092) -
ZEELFEAAZTAR - FNAZtN\BE
tEAAZTNR
Total 49,145,426 = - (49,145,426) -
@t

2012 Share Option Scheme

The 2012 Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution on 22 May 2012 (the "“Effective Date"”). The purposes of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to attract and retain the best
available personnel and to provide additional incentives or rewards
to employees, directors, consultants, business associates and
advisers of the Company for their contribution to the Company
and to promote our success. The 2012 Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing on the
Effective Date. The terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are in
compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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Eligible participants of the 2012 Share Option Scheme include the
following persons:

(a)

(b)

(@)

(d)

(e)

®

(9)

(h)

any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

any directors, non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interest;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest;

any customer of the Group or any of entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

any shareholder of or holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds any equity interest;

any other group or classes of persons or entities from time to
time determined by the Board as having contributed or may
contribute to by way of joint venture, business alliances or
other business arrangements to the development and growth
of the Group; and

any company wholly owned by one or more person belonging
to any of the above (a) to (g) participants.
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The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the Effective Date (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”) or the date of refreshing the Scheme
Mandate Limit approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meeting. The maximum number of shares issuable upon
exercise of the options which may be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant (other than a substantial shareholder, chief executive
or director as explained below) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a connected person (as defined under
the Listing Rules), are subject to approval by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options). Where
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
would result in the Company's shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person(s) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
(a) representing in aggregate over 0.10 per cent of the Company's
shares in issue; and (b) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of options is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company in compliance with
the Listing Rules.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing by
a participant within 21 days from the date of offer upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period for the share options granted is determined by the Board,
which period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
offer.
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As at the date of this report, the Company had 218,002,090 share
options outstanding under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 3.00% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at such date. As at the date of this report, the remaining
life of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is approximately 4 years.

The amount payable of each share to be subscribed for under an option
in the event of the option being exercised shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion and must be at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant (which must be a
business day);

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The following table discloses movements of the share options under the

2012 Share Option Scheme during the year:

R AR B H - A R]H218,002,09017% 15
B2 ——FBERETE N ARITE 2B
B HERARARRZBZEZEITRALY
3.00% cRAAREBE — T — —FHERKE
STEIZ B T ERY BIF-

AT EBREMRBBRES TREZ
BERENDzENESE AREZREENIG
B ATBIRUT=FP2z&SE !
i) BORERERLBER(BARER
FB)RBXEARERMRZKT

&:

BOREZBRER L BB R EE
XARBRAEARERABTZFH
Wi fE: &

(ii)

Befn 2 EfE

(iii)

TRHEE T FRRE & TR
RFL T

Exercise Outstanding Forfeited/ Outstanding

price asat Granted during Exercised during  Lapsed during as at

Date of grant Exercisable period (HKS per Share) 1.1.2017 the year the year the year 31.12.2017

RZ2-t# R=2-t%

e -A-H tZA=+-8

RLBH :d ] (Bn8R) i RAT B FRRI ERTE FRARK/XR B

Directors 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 0 16.7.2018 030 60,308,060 - - (42,240,000) 18,068,060

(Note)

% “Z-RftATtA ZE-RFtATtRAZ (GE)
“2-N\EtA+iA

Employees 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 10 16.7.2018 0.30 166,934,030 = - (105,000,000) 61,934,030
&8 “Z-RAEtATtR ZZ-nEtATLAE
“2-N\EtA+iA

Consultants 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 10 16.7.2018 0.30 138,000,000 - - - 138,000,000
B “Z-RftATtA ZE-RFtATtRAZ
“E-N\ELA+iA

Total 365,242,090 - - (1472400000 218,002,090

ast

Note: It includes 8,034,030 share options granted to Mr. Wang Jian, who resigned as
a director of the Company on 24 January 2017 but has been a director and the
legal representative of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since then.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” and “Share Options” above, at no time during
the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director
of the Company or an entity connected with a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the directors of the
Company had any interest in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
following persons other than the directors or chief executive of the
Company, in the Company’s shares which fall to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which
have been recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, were as follow:

FTERRZKROEZR ARG F
ZRE

KoE—t&E+-A=+—8 BAAFR
5 R DI I6 AT E 2 B R M
Fidk UTEBAL (EHFARANERSR
T BTHAR) RAR TR P AR EE
% R 5 KO EXVE B2 35 BAMA
ARBEZERBARDT

Percentage of
the Company’s

Name Capacity Interest in shares issued share capital
EERDE

21 20 % 17 7 &= ERTREABD L

Xie Zhikun (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,800,000,000 24.78%

FRER (K1) SRS A Al

Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd* Interest in a controlled corporation 1,800,000,000 24.78%
(Note 1)

FREMCESEBRAE (M) SR NG 2y

Zhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Interest in a controlled corporation 1,800,000,000 24.78%
Management Co., Ltd.* (Note 1)

FERE (LR)EAERERAA NG X
(PigzET)

Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd* Interest in a controlled corporation 1,600,000,000 22.02%
(Note 1)

EEBEREERAR (M) SR A A

Silver Venus Investments Ltd. Beneficial Owner 1,600,000,000 22.02%
(“Silver Venus”) (Note 1)

Silver Venus Investments Ltd. EmEE A
(TSilver Venus |) (Pi2E1)

Jingwei Textile Machinery Co., Ltd.* Interest in a controlled corporation 400,000,000 5.51%

(Note 2)
REGHEHEROAERAR (MF2)

REEH AR

B
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Notes:

(1)

1,600,000,000 Shares and 200,000,000 Shares are held by Silver Venus and
Aquila Global Investment Ltd (“Aquila Global”) respectively. Silver Venus is wholly
owned by E/8 {1 & B R A A (Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd*), which
is in turn wholly owned by FE® 2K B AR A& (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group
Co., Ltd*). Aquila Global is wholly owned by £% ( L&) &EH L (BREE)
(Yunji (Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), a limited partnership
registered under the laws of the PRC, of which it ZREHEEHE AR A A
(Beijing Jingpeng Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is the general partner and
has 99% of the voting power. It RRIEHREEILHMR A A (Beijing Jingpeng
Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is owned as to 40.50% by 7 &E& A&
AR AT (Yanneng Capital Management Co., Ltd.*). HEEABTEAR A A
(Yanneng Capital Management Co., Ltd.*) is wholly owned by FEM¥£EA
[® A 7] (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*). FRIE 2 EEH R A 7] (Zhongzhi
Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*) is owned as to 76% by F/ERE (It R)EAREEH
fR A& (Zhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.*), which is
in turn wholly owned by Mr. Xie Zhikun (#2E 8554 ) . By virtue of the SFO, each
of L/ & AR A A (Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd*), REMEEE
AR AT (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*), F/EREL (It R) EAREE AR
‘A A] (Zhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.*) and Mr. Xie
Zhikun (fi#E$E5E4E ) is deemed to be interested in all the Shares beneficially held
by Silver Venus, and, each of £%& ( £/8) & &R L (BRE %) (Yunji (Shanghai)
Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), Jt R RH§1& & E IR HR A7 (Beijing
Jingpeng Investment Management Co., Ltd.*), A& REILH PR A A (Yanneng
Capital Management Co., Ltd.*), FERXEBEFR A A (Zhongzhi Enterprise
Group Co., Ltd*), #BRE (I R)EAEELFRAAE (Zhonghai Shengfeng
(Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.*) and Mr. Xie Zhikun (FRE$E5C4) is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares beneficially held by Aquila Global.
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200,000,000 Shares and 200,000,000 Shares are held by Aquila Global and
Sungi Global Investment Co., Ltd, (“Sungi Global”) respectively. Aquila Global is
wholly owned by £ ( /&) &% &H L (BRE#) (Yunji (Shanghai) Investment
Center (Limited Partnership)*), a limited partnership registered under the laws
of the PRC, of which Jt R R &K &EEILHF R A &l (Beijing Jingpeng Investment
Management Co., Ltd.*) is the general partner and has 99% of the voting power.
It R R E BEE BB AR (Beijing Jingpeng Investment Management Co.,
Ltd.*) is owned as to 40.50% by A& &M DB AT (Jingwei Textile
Machinery Co., Ltd.*). Sungi Global is wholly owned by #& ( L/§)#&&H
N (BRAE) (Shangji (Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*),
a limited partnership registered under the laws of PRC, of which 8 & &
BRI EAFRAF (Dazi County Dingcheng Capital Investment Co., Ltd.*) is
the general partner and Jt R RIS FHTIREBEEABR AR (Beijing Zhongrong
Dingxin Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is its limited partner. #2845 55
BRI EAFRAF (Dazi County Dingcheng Capital Investment Co., Ltd.*) is
wholly owned by Jt R ELSFTIRE B IR B R AR (Beijing Zhongrong Dingxin
Investment Management Co., Ltd.*). dt R RIS IKEEEHFRAF (Beijing
Zhongrong Dingxin Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is wholly owned by 7 &
BB =7E B R A (Zhongrong International Trust Co., Ltd*) which is owned as to
approximately 37.47% by 45 % % & i% 17 B IR 2 & (Jingwei Textile Machinery
Co., Ltd.*). By virtue of the SFO, each of 2% ( L)) #&%&FR L (ARAE) (Yunji
(Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), It RRIEIHEE R BE A
@ (Beijing Jingpeng Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) and 4% 43 4 & # 4k %
B AR A7) (Jingwei Textile Machinery Co., Ltd.*) is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares beneficially held by Aquila Global, and, each of FIE (_ £/ ) &
b (BRAE) (Shangji (Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*),
EWGRHEAREEBR AR (Dazi County Dingcheng Capital Investment Co.,
Ltd.*), It R @SR EEE B R AT (Beijing Zhongrong Dingxin Investment
Management Co., Ltd.*), 7 @B FR {555 B PR 2 7 (Zhongrong International Trust
Co., Ltd*) and £&#& %5 £ W 1% 15 B BR 2 &) (Jingwei Textile Machinery Co., Ltd.*)
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares beneficially held by Sungi Global.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 7,264,566,267 shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2017.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
year is as follows:
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TEFEFRHEER

FR EREEFFPRHERGAKEHE
BEREBEIEMDHNEIIMT

Percentage of the Group’s total

HEEBABENED L
Purchases Sales
24 2. SHERE
The largest customer BARF - 59%
Five largest customers in aggregate AABFEET - 90%
The largest supplier XA ER 77% =
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAEEREE 99% =

At no time during the year, have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 and as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622,
Laws of Hong Kong) when the report of the directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD REMESEE

Events after the reporting period of the Group are set out in note 41 to ANEE Z {EHE EBEH NG A P EHRK
the consolidated financial statements. B 7E41 o

AUDITORS ¥ 2R

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December #HZE-ZE—+F+-_A=1+—HILFEZ4
2017 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the auditors & B/ 73Rk & B £ 1 2K 2 7] 4Z A0 1= K A A1
of the Company, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for (&% ) @I E AR QA BEZ  MEK

re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. R (ES) AMEBMERARKER
EERFRBEFAE LRFNWEEKBRE
AR NE B -

On behalf of the Board REEER

Mr. Li Yang ZRiLE

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN e

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018 58 —FT—-N\EF=ZA=+NH8
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F, Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

o
Shi ne‘ZOing

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA BEST GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Best
Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 203,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Recoverability of finance lease receivables, loans
and interest receivables and promissory note

receivable

Refer to note 23, note 28 and note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 106 to 112.

The key audit matter
BEREXBIE

HREZER

REBEZFNEXHE  BREZFAESE
BERRAPENG AV BEBRERTREREN
FH-BPEERSEEUBHRERMIILER
EABGARENESTH NTERLEFS
HEBERRER-

FEUsEHERE BRERKR
BN BB WA 7 R 45 2w W E 1

BRMGR AP RERM 23 W28 KM aE
35LAREI106E112E 2 ST HR °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEBRTEERBEELRSENS A

The Group had finance lease receivables, loans and
interest receivables and promissory note receivable
of approximately HK$201,410,000, HK$362,464,000
and HK$90,000,000 respectively as at 31 December
2017. We consider the recoverability of finance lease
receivables, loans and interest receivables and promissory
note receivable as a key audit matter because the
recoverabilities of these receivables are reviewed by the
management using a significant degree of management
judgement.

EEER T —tFt+-_A=+t—HBZzEKREHM
ERIE BREREMEAREREARZRD AL
201,410,000/ 7t * 362,464,000/ 7t 590,000,000/ JT °
B R & T B RIE - EUCE B TS A R P K,
ERAKEIERBEREZEE  REMZSRYGRIE
Z RTU B Ty B B IR fE {5 A B K B 1T AR o

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the application
of the Group’s impairment policies on finance lease
receivables, loans and interest receivables and promissory
note receivable and the management estimations or
judgements on the recoverability on the outstanding
balances.

BB ZRF AN E ESEREKRRERSHIE E
W& 3R R A B CA B e O H R AR e R VR B BUR LA K B IR B
5 (8] R (E5& 45 R 2 BT W [E] 1 B 14 5 Sk 0 e T 2R AT e

We have reviewed the process of the Group for granting
credit period to lessee by inspecting the credit policy of the
Group. Financial information of the lessee was obtained to
assess the recoverability of outstanding receivables, such
as the repayment pattern of the lessee, and to confirm any
default or delay of payment that had occurred previously.
FMEFEBRER BRENEEBEREN SEERAHEA
REEERANBIE - BBEABEAZHBER (FlanAHEA
BE AR ) ART AR AR (8 28 W R IE 2 AT m U 1 - DA KR FERR 48
EESEEE A RSERNRAER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The key audit matter
BREXER
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FEREREE %)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEBRHEREREERSENS A

We obtained and reviewed the settlements of principal and/
or interest receivables of the finance lease, loans and interest
receivables and promissory note receivable during and after
the end of the reporting period.

BB T BRI HRE A RREARENORERERK
ek, /HFE BRERXRFSUARERELZENEE

B e

We reviewed the impairment assessment conducted by the
management including instance of default and indicators
of possible impairment and reassessed the assumptions
and critical judgements used by the management in the
impairment assessment with reference to the reliability of the
management’s past estimates, the creditworthiness/financial
abilities of the borrowers and/or guarantors and the value of
collateral pledged.
HMEEBEIREETHRER G BIEEQNED KA
ENPR W2EEEEBAMTHATENE BRAR 2
ERANGEE BN A RAERERZNEESHTM
E IR B FORBERT (4 A AT R (R 5% % A R 1 1 o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

HEREREE %)

Recoverability of trade and other receivables ESRHEMEWNKIEZTE WY

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements and the B2BGEAEMEHRERMFT24%F1065E112

accounting policies on pages 106 to 112.

The key audit matter
EREEKSBR

HEZgtHE-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMEBRTREREERSENS E

The Group had trade and other receivables of
approximately HK$183,596,000 as at 31 December
2017. We consider the recoverability of trade and other
receivables as a key audit matter because the allowance
for doubtful debts involves significant degree of
management judgement.
EEER-ZT—tF+-_A=t—HZESRHEMERK
FKIA /5 49183,596,0008 7T « F P95 & 5 & H A & U 3 IA
ZAEWHERE RERERZEE  REARREREBSRERE
[& 2 A HIMEf o

Our audit procedures were designed to review management’s
assessment of the indicators of impairment and evaluate the
reasonableness of the methods and assumptions used to
estimate the allowance for doubtful debts.

BMBEZEFORT RN BEBERAENR 271 B
ST RRBEESARAN A RBRRA G B IEETAE -

We have discussed the indicators of possible impairment
with the management and, where such indicators were
identified, assessing the management’s impairment testing.
We have evaluated the assumptions and critical judgement
used by the management by assessing the reliability of the
management’s past estimates and taking into account the
ageing at year end and cash received after year end, as well
as the recent creditworthiness of each debtor.

BMERTEENRUERECHR  WERRLIERE @D
Kb AHEERE ORENR - HMEE BT EERERER
SR SEMWEA RFAEBRRRFEBEMBIREARETS
BEHEAZGHESR FEBEEEMEA 2 BRE REARHE-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the FEZ2F4R

accounting policies on page 93.

The key audit matter
EREEKBR

BEEEZERERAR 2017F#H

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB IR S

HEREREE %)
BE 2R EM

RZ & B mAM 20 % FE938 2 g5t
B

>3+?

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMEBRTREREELSENS A

We identified impairment assessment of goodwill arising
from acquisition of businesses in current year as a key
audit matter due to the involvement of significant
judgements and assumptions in determining the
recoverable amounts of cash generating units (“CGUs")
to which goodwill have been allocated, which are derived
from value in use calculations using discounted cash flow
models.
BMEBAAFEEWEEBAEE BB REN R
HRERFER ARAEECTEIRKMEB e ELEN
(ReEEBM]) 2lEEE (FRAKERIRE MK
RERAEEFESL) S RERAGRRRFZ-

At 31 December 2017, the Group has goodwill of
approximately HK$71,582,000 relating to CGUs
principally engaged in the financial services business in
the Hong Kong which are subject to annual impairment
assessment.
RZTE—tF+-_HA=+—8"
NESRBRBEFR L RCELS
BT EBAETFEEREF G-

E\x.ﬁFEIEEAE/;\%
S 7 P2 A #4971,582,000

Management's assessment of goodwill impairment is
highly judgmental and is dependent on certain significant
inputs including the discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to revenue and direct costs, which
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market. No impairment loss has been
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2017.
IR EHEE R EN T BEY R ERHE - G
ARRNETERBASE BHEBEEE BREURKER
BEKARWTEEZE) ﬁﬁtxiﬁi’ﬂ%’éiﬂ&’lﬁf | R AR R T35
BEEESMTE RNEE_T—+tFT+TA=+—HILF
S ERER R EEE -

Our procedures were designed to evaluate management’s
impairment assessment process and challenge the
reasonableness of the selection of valuation model, adoption
of key assumptions and input data by reference to the
historical information and internal forecasts, together with
other externally available information and sensitivity analysis.
BMEZEFRA D ANEERRE 2B ENGERF WL
D EZFE AR R N EPTE R A K AT ER A L At S0 56 & R K BURK
EAMsPE R hERED MERAEZRERBABIENS
BRI E AR

We have also considered the overall reasonableness of these
forecasts.

BHATZERIZERAN 2 BREBIE-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for
the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB IR S

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lau Kai Wong.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lau Kai Wong

Practising Certificate Number: P06623

Hong Kong
29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GelEakAMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tHF ZTE—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 52 FTER T T
(Restated)
(KeE7)
Continuing operations BFESEER
Turnover R 9 537,548 641,312
Revenue: g 10
— Trading of goods —EEEm 356,943 423,615
— Provision of international air and sea — 1R A B B A 22
freight forwarding services g LEERY 6,642 5,789
— Consultancy income from finance leases — &t & & B8 W A 19,178 31,165
— Interest income from finance leases —BMEHER B KA 9,440 11,008
— Interest income from money lending —EEF B WA 32,103 16,631
— Brokerage commission and dealing income— & 42 H & & B & W A 1,269 =
425,575 488,208
Operating costs: BB
— Cost of trading goods sold — BB REEKRAN (349,675) (412,749)
— Cost of providing international air and ~ — 2 BB fnz=
sea freight forwarding services 8 EEBRE KA (4,696) (4,012)
(354,371) (416,761)
Other income H A 11 13,372 1,908
Administrative and other expenses TR R H Ath S (40,306) (43,970)
Staff costs & B AR (34,332) (29,189)
Realised (loss) gain on held for trading BERGKEZ
investments BRI (BE) W 25 (3.294) 1,529
Unrealised (loss) gain on fair value change #$1ERXZEE 2
on held for trading investments NEEEE 2 RER
(E518) W 25 (1,624) 29,443
Share of losses of associates DG E AR EE 21 (2,183) (10,864)
Gain on disposal of asset classified as held HESEAFIEHE 2
for sale BE 2 W 15 281 =
Gain on disposal of an associate o — A A A 2 W 21 29,420 =
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMNHLERE 2EE
investments - (14,584)
Impairment loss on finance lease receivable EWEIEHEFIE 2 BEEE 23 - (22,184)
Profit (loss) before tax B AT E A (E51E) 32,538 (16,464)
Income tax expense s i 14 (8,013) (2,385)
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing K EFBERI L ¥ 2
operations FREAM (BE) 24,525 (18,849)
Discontinued operation BRIELEEK
Profit for the year from discontinued REERIEREERH
operation F R F 15 - 7,799
Profit (loss) for the year FREA (HE) 12 24,525 (11,050)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEmkAt2EKER

For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

2017 2016
—E—+tF A S
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B E FTET FHIT
(Restated)
(g&E5)
Other comprehensive H2mEBKA (XH)
income (expenses)
Items that may be reclassified HEREFHIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: B2 HE -
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBRELEZ
translation of foreign operations PE 5 =& 28,861 (26,193)
Share of other comprehensive income LB EAFZ
(expenses) of associates HEar2mBA (ZH) 21 501 (5,046)
Fair value gain (loss) on available-for-sale ~ A[ £ H&ERE ~
investments RNFEHE (EE) 775 (19,059)
Translation reserve released HE R R R R R 2
upon disposals of associates ME 7,051 =
Release of reserve upon disposal of REETHEERERZ
available-for-sale investments & El - 14,584
37,188 (35,714)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) for FRZ2FE U A (X H) B 58
the year 61,713 (46,764)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to R BB AL F AT
owners of the Company (EB#E)
— From continuing operations —REARBEEEER 24,533 (18,835)
— From discontinued operation —REBRILEZEE - 8,295
24,533 (10,540)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to FEEE B e o FE AL
non-controlling interests FEREN (EE)
— From continuing operations —REFBERLEER (8) (14)
— From discontinued operation —REBRIEEZEB - (496)
(8) (510)
24,525 (11,050)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GelEakAMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B FTET FHEIT
(Restated)
(Kg&E5)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) for R ZE WA (2 )
the year attributable to BB TS IBESG
— owners of the Company . WNEIEZZ =N 61,711 (46,252)
— non-controlling interests — IR E R 2 (512)
61,713 (46,764)
Earnings (loss) per share BRER (&H8) 17
From continuing and discontinued REFBERERIEEEET
operations
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREE (BW) 0.34 centsfll  (0.15) centsfll
From continuing operations REFELEED
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREE (BW) 0.34 centsfll  (0.27) centsfll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B REAR LR

As at 31 December 2017 R = FE—+F+=-H=4+—H

2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
B & FET FET
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE RFE 18 8,477 10,418
Intangible asset B AE 19 811 811
Interests in associates KB E RN A 2 s 21 - 85,143
Available-for-sale investments AfHERE 22 14,562 13,787
Finance lease receivables e U @t & F & FOE 23 7,673 37,410
Goodwill EES 20 71,582 -
Regulatory deposits EERE 1,705 -
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 30 5,689 3,179
110,499 150,748
Current assets REBEE
Finance lease receivables el L & H E A 23 193,737 196,440
Loans and interest receivables EE R EFE 28 362,464 279,647
Trade and other receivables %’%&Eﬂﬂwﬁm 24 183,596 133,567
Promissory note receivable JE W R iR 35 90,000 =
Held for trading investments BIEXSHKRE 25 16,380 115,266
Pledged bank deposit BEHEFRITER 26 59 54
Bank balances and cash IRTTEBREIRS —EE LB
— trust and segregated accounts SLERP 27 33,897 -
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR LIRS - —KEFR
— general accounts 27 173,281 170,233
1,053,414 895,207
Assets classified as held for sale DEABRELECEE 15 - 10,760
1,053,414 905,967
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H b FE - 50IA 29 66,245 23,404
Tax liabilities HIBEE 10,312 7,668
76,557 31,072
Net current assets REEEFE 976,857 874,895
Total assets less liabilities EEH#ERARE 1,087,356 1,025,643
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e IR &

As at 31 December 2017 R —F—+F+=-HA=4+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF A
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
k=2 FTHExT T T
Capital and Reserves BARFEE

Share capital % Zx 31 363,228 363,228
Share premium and reserves f% 17 3 (B & 5% 1 724,169 662,458

Equity attributable to owners of the RRRHEE NEMLER
Company 1,087,397 1,025,686
Non-controlling interests FE PR R 2 (41) (43)
1,087,356 1,025,643

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 203 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Li Yang
=5
Director

BF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HREaERSBHxR

For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

Share  Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed  Translation Statutory options  revaluation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
Bx RHEE  BARR  REEE  iTRE  BRERE RAERRE  ZnER Nt FERER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TAT FAT TEL L FhL FhL ThT ThT T
(Note i) (Note ii)
(i) (B3kii)
At 1 January 2016 R=F-~5-A-H 263,228 650,262 1,996 (15,794) 817 23,583 3,262 (210,860) 716,494 (23,475) 693,019
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - (10,540) (10,540 (510) (11,050)
Other comprehensive (expense) ~ EAEM2TE (iH ) WA
income for the year:
Exchange differences arisngon ~ BEFINEBHEEL
translation of EXZE
foreign operations - - - (26,191) - - - - (26,191) ) (26,193)
Fair value loss on ARHERE L
available-for-sale investment ATERE - - - - - - (19,059) - (19,059) - (19,059)
Release of reserve upon R EF L ERER
disposal of available-for- AR
sale investments - - - - - - 14,584 - 14,584 - 14,584
Share of other comprehensive ~ AEBERFZ
expenses of associates Ef2ER - - - (5,046) - - - - (5,046) - (5,046)
Total comprehensive expense ~ ER2ENHEE
for the year - - - (31,237) - - (4,475) (10,540) (46,252) (512) (46,764)
Issue of shares upon RARBEGRND
subscrption (note 31) (B331) 100000 260,000 - - - - - - 30000 - 360000
Transaction cost attributable to ~ RREEETRAER 2
issue of share upon REHE
subscription - (2,609) - - - - - - (2,609) - (2,609)
Forfeiture of share options BUERE
(note 32) (H3t3) - - - - - (839) - 838 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF
(note 33) (h333) = = = (1,947) (817) - - 817 (1,947) 23,944 21,997
At 31 December 2016 RZB-—E
TZA=t-H 363,228 907,653 1,996 (48,978) - 22,745 (1213) (219,745) 1,025,686 (43) 1,005,643
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% =&

—tEF A= AR

Share  Investment Non-
Share Share Contributed ~ Translation  Statutory options  revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
Bx  ROBE ARG AEER  iERE BRERE REEMRRE  ZHER Mt FERER Eh)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THIT T Thn Thn Thz THm FH1 FHL TH
(Note i) (Note ii)
(H3ti) (Witii)
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-A-B 363,228 907,653 1,996 (48,978) - 2,145 (1,213 (219,745) 1,025,686 (3) 1,025,683
Profit for the year gl - - - - - - - 24,533 24,533 8 24,525
Other comprehensive income ~~ EAEM2ERA (i) :
(expense) for the year:
Exchange differences arisingon £ E B EBEEE L
translation of foreign operations 3 Z% - - - 28,851 - - - - 28,851 10 28,861
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AT £ 2
investments N ERE - - - - - - 715 - 715 - 715
Translation reserve released REERERRRRRZ
upon disposal of associates hEGE - - - 7,051 - - - - 7,051 - 7,051
Share of other comprehensive ~ HEBEERFLZ
income of associates Ef2EHA - - - 501 - - - - 501 - 501
Total comprehensive income EREENALE
for the year - - - 36,403 - - 175 24,533 61,711 2 61,713
Transfers to statutory reserve ~~ EAZTEERE - - - - 3,908 - - (3,908) - - -
Forfeiture and lapse of share ~ RAERERERELR
options (note 32) (H332) - - - - - (17,378) - 17318 - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tF
+ZR=1-H 363,228 907,653 1,996 (12,575) 3,908 5,367 (438) (181,742) 1,087,397 (41) 1,087,356
Note i: The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between — Kizki: ANEBEZHMABRBIERARRGOR —NNNF
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the EEABARSFARARER EMAT BE
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board BHEMKENRE AR 2RO EERERZRM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1996 and the nominal value BOIZARRRMNEBEZEZRE
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange.
Note ii: In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") Company Law  Kizkii: REFEFEARLME ([FE]) A FDE KR BIH

and the PRC subsidiaries’ Articles of Association, a subsidiary registered in
the PRC, prior to any dividend distribution, is required to appropriate 10%
of its annual statutory net profit as determined in accordance with relevant
statutory rules and regulations applicable to enterprises established in the PRC
(after offsetting any prior years' losses) to the statutory reserve. When the
balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior
years' losses or to increase capital. However, such balance of the statutory
reserve must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital after such
usages. The balance is reclassified to retained earnings at the date of disposal
of the subsidiary.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

75

2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Profit (loss) before tax from BrAt AT E A (E518)
— continuing operations — BB ER 32,538 (16,464)
— discontinued operation —ERIEEEERS - 7,799
Profit (loss) before tax BrAi AT E A (B518) 32,538 (8,665)
Adjustments for: FTPNIEBEHFAE:
Depreciation of property, M- HEREZEITE
plant and equipment 3,658 3,076
Share of losses of associates PG5 E A R EE 2,183 10,864
Loss on disposal of property, EEWE BEREZHZ
plant and equipment &8 44 =
Unrealised loss (gain) on fair value RHIERSIEEZ
change on held for trading N EEE 2 KRR
investments EE (M) 1,624 (29,443)
Write-off of property, M2 BRE MR
plant and equipment 58 10
Interest income from bank, overdue RERT BEES
trade receivables and promissory JE W SR8 % FE I
note receivable A EE 2 ERA (5.372) (683)
Gain on disposal of asset classified HE S BEARIER
as held for sale EEEZNWE (281) =
Write-off of other payable i 55 Lt JE A RRIE (7,240) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BB A Az W - (8,539)
Gain on disposal of an associate & — & QB 2 e (29,420) -
Government grant B I 48 B (6) (26)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEERE 2EE
investments - 14,584
Impairment loss on finance FEREmERERIALZ
lease receivables REEE - 22,184
Operating cash flows before movements  &E & & & B 5] 2
in working capital KEHESRE (2,214) 3,362
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 & E b e Uk FRIE R
other receivables (3%m) 43,046 (68,834)
Decrease (increase) in finance & U @k & A & A R
lease receivables ($8hn) 47,968 (93,917)
Decrease in held for HIEXSHIRER D
trading investments 97,293 146,863
Decrease in cash and e RIRITHEBRR D —
bank balances — trust and EARBYERR
segregated account 7,168 —
Increase in loans and interest receivables  J&U B 7k & K1) 5 1% hn (82,817) (279,647)
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 R E MR FRIE
other payables CRL A ) 32 hn (16,970) 11,003
Cash generated from (used in) KERESE (A 2B %
operations 93,474 (281,170)
Income tax paid BT TS (7,734) (4,541)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXBREE (A Z
OPERATING ACTIVITIES Be&FE 85,740 (285,711)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —

—tEF-A=F—HILFE

2017 2016
NOTES —E—+tF —E-REF
Bt 5 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ET FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Interest received from bank and RERITRAHES
overdue trade receivables J& WK IE 2 B A 2 1,126 683
Net cash outflow from acquisition g NET
of subsidiaries W RLFEE 34 (127,872) =
Consideration paid for the subscription REBE QA2
of shares of associates &R Fr TR B - (9,935)
Transaction cost attributable to the REBEQRZ
subscription of shares of associates I 17 FE AR 2 32 5 B AN - (2,019)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEMHBARZ
subsidiaries WERAFEE 33 - 7,133
Net cash inflow from disposal of assets HERIELHEEEZ
held for sale R mAFRE 15 10,993 =
Net proceeds from disposal of HEMHEERE 2
available-for-sale investments FiS 5118 /F 58 - 18,916
Net proceeds from disposal of HE—HEEQRER 2
interest in an associate FiS kI8 /F 58 29,979 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj’%%¥ 5 &
plant and equipment B2 TSR 900 -
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE - BERZE
equipment (1,328) (2,974)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REZH (FRA)FRBZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEFE (86,202) 11,804
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Proceeds of shares issued upon RREREITRG
subscription Fﬁ?%?ﬁ\ - 360,000
Receipts of government grant BZH‘T%%EM&U\ 26
Transaction cost attributable to RBBERBITRMOENL 2
the shares issued upon subscription RSB - (2,609)
NET CASH FROM RMETHRESZRSEH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 6 357,417
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ReRkBREEHEEBEEZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R4 ) 18 n % 58 (456) 83,510
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HAZRER
AT 1 JANUARY RE&%EEAE 170,233 90,392
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes gEgo e 3,504 (3,669)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+-A=+—HzHEER
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by ReEEEH  URTT
bank balances and cash HEer MR 5 ER 173,281 170,233
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GENERAL

China Best Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” of the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries (together with the Company
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 39.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS(s)”), amendments and Interpretations (“Int(s)”),
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA").

Amendments Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
to HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle: Amendments
to HKFRS 12
Amendments Disclosure Initiative
to HKAS 7
Amendments Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
to HKAS 12 Unrealised Losses

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) —

Interpretation 22

HK(IFRIC) —

Interpretation 23

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
Lease?
Insurance Contract?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2014 - 2016 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
4 Effective date not yet been determined.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that,
except as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9
that were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement
category for certain financial assets. The finalised version of HKFRS
9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for impairment
assessments.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. E
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS i%
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED) -3

=

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

&
H
m
ok

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 (2014) to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
(2014) requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ﬁﬁ
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED) -3

=

R 4E

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and commitments
to extend credit were added. Those requirements eliminate
the threshold that was in HKAS 39 for the recognition of
credit losses. Under the impairment approach in HKFRS
9 (2014), it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised. Instead,
expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses should always be accounted for. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition and,
consequently, more timely information is provided about
expected credit losses.

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which aligns hedge
accounting more closely with risk management activities
undertaken by companies when hedging their financial and
non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-based approach,
HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a risk component can be
identified and measured and does not distinguish between
financial items and non-financial items. The new model also
enables an entity to use information produced internally for
risk management purposes as a basis for hedge accounting.
Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and
compliance with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics
that are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are based
on an economic assessment of the strength of the hedging
relationship. This can be determined using risk management
data. This should reduce the costs of implementation
compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because
it reduces the amount of analysis that is required to be
undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

81

(
B RERAIHF
BRI BERBMBREER (&)

BEBUBHEEREIN (—F—0T
F)E@MTA (&)

e TREFSEME MATEBHEE
HHeMEERREREREEX
?f‘ZfEHMZTTJEST@Z B )UZTE%E

cZEHTEHEBRTE 7‘6-5 &R
395)%5%15@ 1:??)%?@3]?%5&
RIZE BV IS RS ERIZESR (=
T—F) ZRERE RERE
BEENBACREEESH K
2 BREE-—HBEBEEEEIN
kUt ERBEEBBZZBAR-
REZREBHEEHREEBEZ
CEETEH AR B VIRFER
LA?HZf % 2 B Eh - WA R
HvZﬁ‘E/HHfoTJEST@éﬂ

e BAEUBHREERFIR (=ZF
—OF) 3| AFE - AFFARE
%T;qﬂ%&:zi@&#i%ﬂmﬁa%

HﬁJ—LA”ﬁ/E@J?@ﬂFF & A
BB BHmELEAFENR (=
T-MEEARBABMFEH &
RREBROERLTE BT E
DEMBEEHMIESHIEE - FER
MAFERANARNBEENER
L'(TJ—L B LM’EP&;T/EP D)
Ko REF B S ERIF395
ﬁz\ ﬁEﬁHEﬁﬁVﬁ FTENEE
REIR BB G 5T % B 553957 Y
ARERERIE- %ﬂ%tﬁ@%f\
BHEZE BZEZEERHRY
S B (R 08 R T T Y A B RT A - A
ﬂﬁﬁﬂ RERHIBETE  FHERE
BE ST E399R v Y e AR
b ﬁtﬁETBHﬁﬁéﬁiﬁ}ﬂMS FSjE=aics
BETEASHENAMTETHNS
&

M BEREERNFEN (—F—M4F)
BR-_T—-—N\F—A—BXZE&HRH
ZEEHBEEN B RATER -



China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmR T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Directors has performed a preliminary analysis of the Group’s
financial instruments as at 31 December 2017 based on the
fact and circumstances existing at that date. The Directors have
assessed the impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) on the Group’s
results and financial position, including the classification categories
and the measurement of financial assets, and disclosures, as
follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group’s available-for-sale investments, including those
currently stated at cost less impairment, will either be
measured as fair value through profit or loss or be designated
with irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income the changes in fair value.

(b) Impairment

The Directors expect to apply the simplified approach and
record lifetime expected credit losses that are estimated based
on the present value of all cash shortfalls over the remaining
life of all of its trade receivables, finance lease receivables
and loan receivables. The application of the expected credit
loss model may result in earlier recognition of credit losses
for these receivables, and increase the amount of impairment
allowance recognised for these items.

The Directors will perform a more detailed analysis which
considers all reasonable and supportable information for the
estimation of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014). Based
on the preliminary assessment, the Directors expect that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) will not have other material
impact on amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

) Identify the contract with the customer;
i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

iii) Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;
and

v)  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance

including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The major sources of revenue of the Group are sales of goods
and provision of services. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
for each of the performance obligations when control over a
good or service is transferred to a customer. The Directors have
preliminarily assessed each type of the performance obligations
and consider that the performance obligations are similar to the
current identification of separate revenue components under HKAS
18 Revenue. Furthermore, HKFRS 15 requires the transaction price
to be allocated to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis, which may affect the timing and amounts
of revenue recognition, and results in more disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. However, the Directors expect
that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised based on the
existing business model of the Group as at 31 December 2017.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the consolidated
financial statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any lease
payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received, the initial estimate of restoration
costs and any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. A lease
liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment made, and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the
right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss following the
requirements of HKAS 16 Plant and Equipment, while interest
accrual on lease liability will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17 Leases.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

85

FEA#HTRRET 2B B
BREED ([FRPBRE
ZRl]) #®

-

C BB R E R RE
BT EAMBREER (&)

BB BHEERFEI6EHE (&)

KSR B H - A AR RKAFER
ERAREE EREERERNLFE
B &8R- AT A B Hisk 2 Al A
HEAEL 2 BEMK - RERD YR
BB PIFAFHEERARARARR
EEERNBERAA HEREBENS
BRERARNHEENRZREER -

Hig FREEERNARITMRETIT
EREMRFHRERBENE  AEE
BENEAEHEFAR - HERRE
HZFEBAT A E B MREEMR

PIEHENRKRENTERTMENR
BR L fa] & {4 S K 7] S R BR & £ 7
ENRERER] EREEEZNE
ERERX (10F) EREBGTE
AIE 163 M E RREHRERBEA
ks - MAERBEZEFE TN RS
PHARR ©

SHEEASFREMS  BEMBERE
HRFE1RABUERBT B ERSE
1TREENEEASHRERE - H
o HEAEESEEES B AKEH
S mEHEE  WANTR T A K REE
N

6 B o E Bl S5 1657 5 10 A AR B
MARRTHEELER BEFESER
FNVTRAEE AR



China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE AR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted provided
that the entity has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers at or before the date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$34,067,000 as disclosed in note 36. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition,
the application of new requirements may result changes in the
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Directors are in the process to determine the amounts of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position, after taking into account all
practical expedients and recognition exemption under HKFRS
16. The Directors expect that the adoption of HKFRS 16 will not
have material impact on the Group's result but certain portion of
these lease commitments will be required to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares its financial
statements using accounting policies other than those adopted
in the consolidated financial statements for like transaction and
events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are
made to that subsidiary’s financial statement in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group's accounting policies.

Control is achieved when the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group's return.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the result of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (expenses) as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii)
derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including
any components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values
and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as
specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Businesses combinations are accounted for by applying the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
incurred to effect a business combination are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the business combination
are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes;

e assets or liabilities related to the acquiree’s employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits,

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement of
the acquiree’s share-based payment transactions with the
share-based payment transactions of the Group are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard.
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For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another standards,
are measured at acquisition-date fair value except for non-
controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured either at fair value
or at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets on
a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent
consideration that is within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured
at fair value at each reporting date, and changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with HKAS 39. Other
contingent consideration that is not within the scope of HKAS 39
is measured at fair value at each reporting date and changes in fair
value are recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period (see
above), the provisional amounts recognised at the acquisition date
are adjusted retrospectively or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised as of that date, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

92

FESHEE @

EKE6t )

FARENRFEZFHERARNA
TEBRFTEHRAR  MBURRHAR
BRI DB - DB AESENHAREL
BERRERRE R ENE  MEREKRE
R ERAAR - LiBE LG ER
%395)?3%@!?%’9?}6%1%{?’:#& HEH
WA VEFE A FEEPIRES
BT ERE39R N B R - Hfth
TEBREE G ERFE39REE AN
FRREREREAPRATFEAE
ARVFEZHNBaPER-

WEBE OB TR AEE LR

%Bzﬂ&zﬁ%m%ﬁmﬂézﬂﬁzﬁﬁaﬁﬁé%ﬁ
AE (MASEESEHEER)HEA
FE mMAEERKREEE (0EF)
R P iR - RUKEE B BRI fEH b2
T R 25 R R SR 4 U B 5 R 2 T AE X
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ R ED aﬁﬁEP (HEBRERE

BANLE#ELS

WEBHEHNN LT RER A HELE
MRS IR R R TR - RIS B &R
TG RIEHIE B R B - 2 ER
WREAMZERBEENGENR (R
EX)TFURERE  HERRINEE
KEE URRNKEBHEFEmE
AP BZAERRRENEE
B 15 TS BT & AR o



BESEZERGR AT 201763k

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill relating to an associate that

included in the carrying amount of the investment is set out in
“investments in associates” below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control of those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

Under the equity method, investments in associates are initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s share of the profit or loss and
changes in the other comprehensive income of the associates
are recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
respectively after the date of acquisition. If the Group’s share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
which determined using the equity method together with any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are provided for, and
a liability is recognised, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made to make the associate’s accounting policies
conform to those of the Group when the associate’s financial
statements are used by the Group in applying the equity method.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment, any excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate is recognised as
goodwill and is included in the carrying amount of the investment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the associate’s losses (if any), the Group determines whether it
is necessary to recognise any additional impairment loss with
respect to its investment in the associate. Goodwill that forms
part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate
is not separately recognised. The entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment in the associate. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the investment ceases to be an associate upon the
Group losing significant influence over the associate, the Group
discontinues to apply equity method and any retained interest is
measured at fair value at that date which is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with
HKAS 39. Any difference between the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate and the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the equity method was discontinued is recognised in profit or
loss. Any amount previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that investment is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained earnings on the same basis as it would have been
required if the investee had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group's ownership interest in an associate is reduced,
but the Group continues to apply the equity method, the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest is reclassified to profit or loss if that gain or loss
would be required to be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in
the associate. The Group's share in the associate’s gains or losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Such
classification requires the asset or the disposal group must be
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset or
disposal group and its sale is highly probable. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 = &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment, or a portion of an investment, an associate or
joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that
will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified as
held for sale from the time when the investment (or a portion of
the investment) is classified as held for sale. Any retained portion
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture that has not
been classified as held for sale continues to be accounted for
using the equity method. The Group discontinues the use of the
equity method at the time of disposal when the disposal results in
the Group losing significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for any retained
interest in the associate or joint venture in accordance with HKAS
39 unless the retained interest continues to be an associate or a
joint venture, in which case the Group uses the equity method (see
the accounting policy regarding investments in associates or joint
ventures above).

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs of disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for goods sold and service rendered in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

—  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

—  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

— it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

—  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Income from provision of freight forwarding services is recognised
when the services are provided.

Consultancy income from finance lease is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Commission income on dealing in securities and futures contract is
recognised on a trade date basis when the services are rendered,
the amount for which can be reliably estimated and it is probable
that the income will be received.
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Handling fee income is recognised when the relevant transactions
have been arranged or the relevant services have been rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition. When a loan has been written down
as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash receipts
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss, i.e., the original
effective interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Fiduciary activities

The Group maintains segregated accounts with authorised
institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal course of
the regulated business activities. The Group has classified the bank
balances — trust and segregated accounts within the current assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding account payables to respective clients and
other institutions on the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group is not allowed to
use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations. The cash held
on behalf of customers is restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme, Central Provident
Fund (“CPF”) Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leaves and sick leave in the
period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are

measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the related service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 = &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit (loss) before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment (classified as finance leases) held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purpose are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
plant and equipment less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible asset
Intangible asset acquired separately

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life that is acquired
separately is carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Regulatory deposits
Regulatory deposits are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash

and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above.
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial

assets held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified

financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE AR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets and is classified as unrealised gain
(loss) on fair value change on held for trading investments in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note
7.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including finance lease receivables, loans and interest receivables,
trade and other receivables, promissory note receivable and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are not
classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-
to-maturity investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 = &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates,
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. The foreign exchange gains and losses that are
recognised in profit or loss are determined based on the amortised
cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivables, loans and interest receivables
and promissory note receivable, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’'s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables and loans
and interest receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE AR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 201782 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment revaluation
reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity investment is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve is recognised in
profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 = &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November
2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1
January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit or
loss in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the exercise
of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register
of outstanding options.
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair values of the goods or
services received are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains
the goods or when the counterparties render services, unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (other than impairment of goodwill set
out in accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life is tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that it may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Fincncial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 = &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (other than impairment of goodwill set
out in accounting policy of goodwill above)
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, value in use of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset for the purpose
of impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically,
the Group categorised the fair value measurements into three
levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines whether
transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy for assets
and liabilities which are measured at fair value on recurring basis
by reviewing their respective fair value measurement.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for current and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision for taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax in the period in which such
determination is made.

At 31 December 2017, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$296,177,000 (2016: HK$251,324,000)
available for offset against future profits. The Directors make
estimates on the future profit streams of the Group entities of
which tax losses are not utilised. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised of the remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016 (note 30).

Depreciation and useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual
value and the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of these assets and if
the expectation differs from the carrying amount, such differences
from the carrying amount will impact the depreciation charges
in the year in which the estimates change. At 31 December
2017, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment was
approximately HK$8,477,000 (2016: HK$10,418,000), net of
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss of approximately
HK$8,523,000 (2016: HK$5,111,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loans and interest receivables and
promissory note receivable

The policy for impairment of trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loans and interest receivables and promissory
note receivable of the Group are based on the evaluation of
collectability and aging analysis of accounts and on management'’s
judgment. A considerable amount of judgment is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowances may be required. At 31
December 2017, the carrying amounts of trade receivables, finance
lease receivables, loans and interest receivables and promissory
note receivable were approximately HK$172,372,000 (2016:
HK$127,811,000), HK$201,410,000 (2016: HK$233,850,000),
HK$362,464,000 (2016: HK$279,647,000) and HK$90,000,000
(2016: N/A) respectively, and net of allowance for impairment
of approximately HK$1,460,000 (2016: HK$1,449,000),
HK$22,756,000 (2016: HK$22,184,000), nil (2016: nil) and nil
(2016: N/A) respectively.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale investments stated
at cost less impairment loss

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to determine when an available-for-
sale investment is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to which the carrying
amount of financial asset is less than its present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset; and the financial health of and short-
term business outlook for the investee, including factors such
as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow. At 31 December 2017, the
carrying amount of available-for-sale investment stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss was approximately HK$7,500,000
(2016: HK$7,500,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$30,750,000
(2016: HK$30,750,000). No impairment loss has been recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2017, the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$71,582,000 (2016:
nil), net of accumulated impairment loss of nil (2016: nil). Details
of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 20.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXRERER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AEBEBEEANERASEER
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the B ELE  REBE(LER R
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and RNEEsR BRI R AIE R A D R o AN B
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged BRBEREFHEFTE -
from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash REBEAEERFEReRBEESEE
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, HEURARREHER AELER (B
comprising issued share capital and reserves. EBITRARGER) o
The Directors review the capital structure on a reqular basis. EETHRNEAEE - ERRNZ—
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital RBEEEBAKANEZIEEANE
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on AzRB -BIBEZESMEEBER X
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its SEEERBETHREBETHETE
overall capital structure through new share issues as well as the HEBERERE-
issue of new debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. ST A
Categories of financial instruments SR T A ZER
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets TRMEE
FVTPL (held for trading investments) BEATEIEREBRRERE
(FIER %&é) 16,380 115,266
Loans and receivables (including cash B3 & R R
and cash equivalents) (@%fﬁ\%&fﬁfﬁ%ﬁlﬁ B) 1,044,507 815,649
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERSE 14,562 13,787
1,075,449 944,702
Financial liabilities Eah=Ri
Amortised cost B SH R AR 65,672 22,904
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B

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include regulatory
deposits, trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables,
loans and interest receivables, promissory note receivable, held for
trading investments, available-for-sale investments, pledged bank
deposit, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Other than the subsidiaries established in the PRC, Singapore
and the United States of America of which functional
currency is RMB, Singapore dollars (“SGD”) and United
States dollars (“USD") respectively, the functional currency
of the Company and other subsidiaries is HK$. Certain
trade and other receivables and bank balances and cash
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the group entities to which they relate. Foreign
currencies are also used to settle expenses for overseas
operations, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

7.
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denominated monetary assets at the reporting date are as WERBCKRABENT
follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHxT FiB T
RMB AR 1,811 150
usD ETT 33,349 478
British Pound (“GBP") HEE([eE]) 424 383
Japanese Yen (“JPY") B (r87mxl) 347 =
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BiI R EEEERKE
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (®)

miE R (@)
() E#mp &)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for USD as HK$ is pegged
to USD.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is currently exposed to RMB, GBP and JPY foreign
currency risk.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
10% (2016: 10%) increase and decrease in functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, HK$ or RMB,
against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% (2016: 10%)
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 10% (2016: 10%) change in foreign currency
rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit for the
year where the respective functional currency (HK$ or RMB)
strengthens 10% (2016: 10%) against the relevant foreign
currency (RMB, GBP, JPY or HK$). For a 10% (2016: 10%)
weakening of respective functional currency (HK$ or RMB)
against the relevant foreign currency (RMB, GBP, JPY or HKS$),
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
for the year and the balances below would be negative.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. Bi R EEEERKE

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (%)
Market risk (Continued) ™iE R (@)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () E¥EE (&)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

BRI (B

Effect on profit or loss

HEZ EE
2017 2016
—g-tE —T-AF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTET FHEIT
Strengthen against RMB by 10% (note a) & AR FHE10% (FizEa) (181) (15)
Strengthen against GBP by 10% (note b) 3 % & 7H{E10% (Fitb) (42) (38)
Strengthen against JPY by 10% (note ¢) & B tF{E10% (BfisEc) (35) -

Notes:

(@) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on RMB bank
balances and cash at year end.

(b) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on GBP bank
balances and cash at year end.

(o) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on JPY bank
balances and cash at year end.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances. It is the Group's policy to keep
its bank balances at floating rate of interest so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposit (see note 26
for details), loans and interest receivable (see note 28 for
details), finance lease receivables (see note 23 for details) and
promissory note receivable (see note 35 for details).

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Directors consider that the interest rate risk in relation to
variable rate bank balances insignificant due to these balances
are either within short maturity period or the outstanding
balances are not significant.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BiI R EEEERKE

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (&)
Market risk (Continued) miE R (@)
(iii) Other price risk (iii) E 5 1% /& f

As at 31 December 2017, the Group is exposed to equity
price risk through its investments in listed equity securities.
The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange. In addition, the
Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective listed investments classified as
held for trading investments had been 20% (2016: 20%)
higher/lower, the profit (2016: loss) after tax for the year
ended 31 December 2017 would increase/decrease (2016:
decrease/increase) by approximately HK$2,735,000 (2016:
HK$19,249,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of
these listed investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale investments
stated at fair value had been 20% (2016: 20%) higher/lower,
the investment revaluation reserve for the year ended 31
December 2017 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,412,000 (2016: HK$1,257,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of these investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not
representative of the other price risk for the investments in
listed equity securities as the year end exposure does not
reflects the exposure during the year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to a failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In respect of finance lease receivables, representing loan advances
to customers with pledged assets, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s financial background, current ability to pay and the
financial status of the guarantor, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. At 31 December
2017 and 2016, the finance lease receivables are secured with the
leased assets. All the finance lease receivables are aroused in the
PRC.

In respect of loans and interest receivables, representing financing
advances to customers under the Group’s money lending business,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s financial background and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the
industry in which customers operate also has an influence on credit
risk but to a lesser extent. The Directors consider the credit risk
under control since the management exercise due care in granting
credit and check the financial background of these customers on a
regular basis.

For loan receivables, the Group has a high concentration of credit
risk on loans and interest receivables as 15% (2016: 18%) and
68% (2016: 74%) of the total loans and interest receivables was
due from the single largest customer and the five largest customers
in the money lending segment respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=A=+—HIFZ

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

For finance lease receivables, the Group has a high concentration
of credit risk on finance lease receivables as 36% (2016: 29%) and
90% (2016: 84%) of the total finance lease receivables was due
from the single largest customer and the five largest customers in
the finance leasing segment respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations are mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
91% (2016: 99%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 December
2017. The Group has concentration of credit risk as 64% (2016:
95%) and 97% (2016: 99%) of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debtor at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of its bank balances and cash and considers
the risk is minimal.

The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are repayable on

demand or within one year as at the end of each of the reporting
periods.

129

R MREREB A
(&)
EERR (&)
%EW@Eﬂfﬁé'$EIEW@§
MEZREER F$$ﬁﬂ§ﬁﬁ
“%?K%ﬁﬁﬂk%ﬁ 5 Bk fE

WR AT E A58 236% (T — XN
29% ) }90% ( —ZF—/XF :84% ) °

ERBUR

HREF R AEEHEREETRE
1% /’\ ;f\fﬁFz&ZfE H&/}\L@Jéi
21;.§ﬂﬁﬁﬁi R_Z—+tF+=A
=+—H AEBEZEERREMIEN
ELE EHRRFE(HE FERFKIE
BE291% (ZF —RNF:99% ) o &x
s‘%lz{sﬁﬂ&wﬁq:ﬁéﬁa—ﬂ?ﬁ&
AREFE DR E S RERFIBEBE
64% (ZZF —7"F :95% ) &97% (=
T—NE:199%) °

RBEEERR AEEZEEEEZR
E—/E BEEEEERE EEH
BEETTEMERIET  AERE IR
BRAERE M WEEHEE B A&
EAEMSENEZEENREHR
Z A B FE - ARERE BL T RE MR B &
BIRR R B EBE LM S - %%
RAAEEZEERRE XK

RBEE AR

REERDECAR AEBEERYE
BARwEeRRSEFEEAR  BAHRE

BEAAEEHZERHES KRER
CREBCHE BEEEITEHRITE
BRRBR e 2 ERAMRR  WRRE @R
HEiE e

REREMKR FAEVBEBEHARE
KEAR—FREE-



China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmR M

For the year ended 31 December 201782 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EERA - ARERERE S gk BN
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the EIER - ﬁ%ﬁ?&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁﬁiﬂx
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values due EERGET B HRR 2 REABEREA T
to short-term or immediate maturities. (ERE]

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TREBREEEEERSRERR

that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period

8. AT EFE

ARFEFEZEBRTEDH  REAN

for recurring measurement, grouped into Levels 1 based on the SEEeHBERBEATEUEREED
degree to which the fair value is observable in accordance with the BHRE—H-

Group’s accounting policy.

2017
—E—+tF
Level 1
£—8
HK$'000
FET

Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEIEREEEREECHKEEE
Held for trading investments-listed equity securities F{EEBHE — EHRAHE2 16,380

Available-for-sale investments aHHERE

Listed equity security ETRAE 7,062
23,442
2016
—-= /\i
Level 1
F—1
HK$'000
AT

Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEIEREEEZREECMKEE
Held for trading investments-listed equity securities % {EE B & — S/ & 115,266

Available-for-sale investments nHHERE

Listed equity security TR E 6,287
121,553
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy in
the current and prior years.

The valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements of each financial instrument on a recurring basis are
set out below:

8.

SRR

—tFFt—A=F—HILFE

nVT\

AEEFTE (&)

RAFERBEFE
B AT -

EATERRZ

EESMIAAFENBEREE MR
7 BR 7R 40 125 0 % % 0 A BB 51
o

Fair value hierarchy

Valuation technique and key inputs

DNREEE RELFEREEDARE
Listed equity securities Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
T IRATE E—# EERT 5 T E A B
TURNOVER 9. BXH

Turnover arises from (i) trading on radio system, electronic
appliance and fuel; (i) gross proceeds from disposal of held for
trading investments; (iii) consultancy income in respect of finance
leases; (iv) interest income from finance leases; (v) interest income
from money lending; (vi) provision of international air and sea
freight forwarding services; and (vii) brokerage commission and
dealing income from brokerage business. An analysis of the
Group's turnover for the year from continuing operations is as
follows:

%%%ﬁ%@()ﬁa, £ 4 3:‘%/\%4 EFH
&E&W‘?Eﬂ (N ERIERHIRE Z TS
IE%E C(iB R EEE 2 BEM UK
; (|v)r¢3ﬂéﬁﬁf§ﬂ/uqﬂ)\' WIEEF &
WA (iR BEIREmz= R 8 EEER
B RViNEEEB 2 EERBEREE
WA - FRAEERBIFELEEL 2
EEBIOWTHET :

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTEx FHET

Trading of goods EE M m 356,943 423,615

Gross proceeds from disposal of held for HERERZREZFHE

trading investments RIE4EEE 111,973 153,104

Consultancy income from finance leases & SRR KA 19,178 31,165

Interest income from finance leases RERER B WA 9,440 11,008

Interest income from money lending BEEFSKA 32,103 16,631
Provision of international air and sea freight f2EBIRMZE &8 & &R

forwarding services 6,642 5,789

Brokerage commission and dealing income &4 M4 K EZE U A 1,269 =

537,548 641,312
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10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. W& K&k 7 & & %

Information reported to the Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the type of goods
sold or services delivered or provided. The Directors have chosen
to organise the Group around difference in products and services.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating decision
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments are as follows:

a) Trading of goods segment engages in trading of products
including but not limited to radio system, electronic appliance
and fuel in Hong Kong and the PRC;

b)  Finance leasing segment engages in finance leasing of plant
and machinery in the PRC;

¢) Money lending segment engages in money lending in Hong
Kong;

d) Brokerage segment engages in securities and futures dealing
services in Hong Kong;

e) International air and sea freight forwarding segment engages
in the provision of international air and sea freight forwarding
and logistic services to customers in Singapore and America;
and

f)  Securities trading segment engages in trading of equity
securities and dividend income from held for trading
investments in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was a new
reportable and operating segment (i.e. brokerage segment)
regarding brokerage services upon the commencement of business
of the acquired subsidiaries as disclosed in note 34 and no
comparative information for this new segment for the year ended
31 December 2016 is presented.

The operation of manufacture and sale of coal segment of the
Group was disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2016.
The segment information reported on the next pages does not
include any amounts for these discontinued operation, which are
described in more detail in note 15.

132

ARERDERDMERRFAERES (B
Eg%ﬁkﬁi RE)ERZEMNBERL
%ié’ic' RfHRERGZER-ES

ERERER MR cZEEREEAE
B-EREANEENHRS D ME E2
LIERRE L E K PTE R EED B

= A
za°

a) EERmOBRBERTEKRS
Péﬁﬁ'u?éf%'@%@ \5&)50, EARE R

d REIBREENFEFRHE

e) BEMZENRELEEES LRI
¥ EREBEKRERNRFREBRE M
B EEBUARRRE: &

i%%ﬁﬂ%%?ﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁ%‘
R ER 5 E REUK

mm

T Y A

s W St

Ao

o

g

RBE_ZT—+tF+A=+—HIL
FE - WA TE34ET R B - PP U R BT
%QﬂZ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ@&'Kﬂﬂﬁ*ﬂﬁ

B 4 BR T 2 FT R s A& & B (B
ﬁ“‘iE’\*B) By 23Nz HEE
—E—RNF+_A=+—BLEFEZ
AL EH -

REBERERBEERRSHERNEBE
—E—RFE+= )EJ*"%_EILEQEJ_EW
HE-TEMEHRDEBERETRIE
EZ%%%JJ:%%%ZEHU%E TG
FHtEE15 0



EEEIERARAR 201751k

Notes to the Consolidated Fincncial Statements

e PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=A=+—HIFZ
10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10.0BZRIBER (&
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results DEBUN R R EAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results TXRASEEREFELEEBIRRE
from continuing operations by reportable and operating segments. RiganEbEln 2 W REE DT
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tF+-A=+—HLEE
Continuing operations B T
International
air and
Trading Finance Money sea freight Securities
of goods leasing lending  Brokerage  forwarding trading Total
EEEm HERE BE £ RELEE BHEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
Turnover EX7 356,943 28,618 32,103 1,269 6,642 111,973 537,548
Revenue Shalhas
External 356,943 28,618 32,103 1,269 6,642 - 425,575
Segment results AH%E 1,523 14,758 23,688 (4,242) (3) (8,330) 27,39
Share of losses of il EH"“‘
associates NEBE (2.183)
Unallocated corporate KA EEE
expenses B (34,349)
Unallocated corporate AP EEME
income WA 41,676
Profit before tax BREAIRT (8
(continuing operations) A& %) 32,538
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. W KR 7 &P E # (2)

(CONTINUED)

DEMEREE (B

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_ZT—RFET_A=1T—HILFE
Continuing operations PR R
International
air and
Trading Finance Money  sea freight Securities
of goods leasing lending  forwarding trading Total
BB E K
BEERm HEHE e & BreE EHEE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TRT TAT FHAL TR TAL

Turnover T 423,615 42,173 16,631 5,789 153,104 641,312
Revenue N U &

External 423,615 42,173 16,631 5,789 - 488,208
Segment results D EE 3,894 6,531 12,996 (139) 26,761 50,043
Share of losses of associates 715HE % 2 7] E718 (10,864)
Unallocated corporate APEEERX

expenses (55,687)
Unallocated corporate AHEERKRA

income 44

Loss before tax (continuing  BRF A1 18 (F54E

operations) BEER) (16,464)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the HE S A2 & R BUR BR3P AR A

SETEREAR D AR AR BB AT
BN (FREEZEBR) ML RS

same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represents the profit earned by (loss from) each

segment without allocation of central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments, depreciation of certain property, plant
and equipment, share of losses of associates, gain on disposal of
an associate, gain on disposal of asset classified as held for sale,
gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net foreign
exchange gain (loss), interest income from promissory note
receivable, bank interest income and sundry income. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 = &

10. WEZRDBER (@)

—tFFt—A=F—HILFE

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by TXARAEERREDHE D < EE
reportable segments. LBEDHT-
At 31 December 2017 R=Z—tHF+=-A=t+—8
International
air and
Trading Finance Money sea freight Securities
of goods leasing lending  Brokerage  forwarding trading Total
BRHER
EEfm HERE wE &g BLEE E5EE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER TR TR TERL
ASSETS RE
Segment assets PHEE 155,384 207,323 363,275 122,510 1,130 16,380 866,002
Unallocated corporate AP EEME
assets EE 297,911
Consolidated assets GREE 1,163,913
LIABILITIES B
Segment liabilities AHEE 167 8,183 - 49,152 1,877 - 59,379
Unallocated corporate KA K &R
liabilities 8 17,178
Consolidated liabilites A BE 76,557
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10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 December 2016

10. WE K 2 BEH &

ITMEERERE (&)
RZE—R"FE+ZA=+—H

International
airand
Trading Finance Money sea freight Securities
of goods leasing lending forwarding trading Total
R
EEAm HERE fEE BLEE EHEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THL THERL THL THT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NHEE 123,171 240,430 280,458 1,081 115,266 760,406
Unallocated corporate assets AP EEBEE 285,549
Assets classified as held for sale DA {E
mEZEE 10,760
Consolidated assets GREE 1,056,715
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities AEHEE 244 7,817 - 1,803 = 9,864
Unallocated corporate liabilities KA EEREE & 21,208
Consolidated liabilities GEBR 31,072

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
available-for-sale investments, interests in associates, deferred
tax assets, pledged bank deposit, promissory note receivable,
bank balances and cash, the equipment of head office and
certain other receivables; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
tax liabilities and certain other payables.
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SRR

tEF—A=1T—HILFE

nVT\

associates, finance lease receivables, regulatory deposit and deferred tax
assets.
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10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. REm R D EE R (&
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information H fth 5 B & %}
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-—Z—tH+=-HA=+—HLEE
International
air and
Trading Finance Money sea freight  Securities
of goods |easing lending  Brokerage  forwarding trading  Unallocated Total
BRMER
EEER  WEHE %8 B BLEE  B3EE AAE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TEn TiEx TEn TR TEx TEx TEx
Amounts included in the measure 5 5 3 ﬁJ“
of segment profit or loss o BERGTTAZLE
segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets B IEREEE (Ki)
(note) 1,225 2 - 72,920 24 - 77 74,248
Depreciation of property, nE BERRETE
plant and equipment 701 3 - 232 6 - 2,686 3,658
Realised loss on held for BERSREZ
trading investments BERER - - - - - 3,204 - 3,294
Unrealised loss on fair value change # ’E@% REZ£BY
on held for trading investments ~ AF(& ‘x?)ﬁ)@ﬁ“ - - - - - 1,624 - 1,624
Amounts regularly provided to the EHRMEEEEREE
chief operating decision maker ~ REERHEHH
but not included in the measure B %A BEER
of segment profit or loss or RAEFAZEE:
segment assets:
Written off of property, HEmE BEREE
plant and equipment - - - - - - 58 58
Interest income MERA (940) (173) (1) - - (1) (4,257) (5372)
Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments, interests in Mis: ERBDEETBEAHRLEERE REE

NRIZ D FERRERENRE EEES
REERIEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE
10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. = R D EBE R (&
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information (Continued) Hitn HER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_Z—R"F+_HA=T—HILFE
Continuing Operations PR ET
International
air and
Trading Finance Money sea freight Securities
of goods leasing lending forwarding trading  Unallocated Total
S
EEfm HEHE B8 BLEE EHEE ADR &t

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAx TAx TAx Tax TAx AL AL

Amounts incuded in the T2 HEEHXS
measure of segment PEERTAL
profit or loss or segment &%
assets:

Additions to non-current  FEFFRBEE

assets (note) (FitzE) 31 98 - - - 2,845 2974
Depreciation of property, 7% BE R

plant and equipment RERE 440 24 - - - 2612 3076
Realised gain on held for ~ &{ERHEE 2

trading investments BEB NS - - - - (1,529) - (1,529)
Impairment loss on finance ERBERE

lease receivables FEZREER - 22,184 - - - - 22,184

Unrealised gain on fair BERSREL
value change on held for ~ REHATE
trading investments 28l - - - - (29,443) - (29,443)

Amounts regularly provided THREEZER
to the chief operating R AR
decision maker but not £ HERXS
included in the measure  HEERKRE
of segment profitor loss ~ AZ &% :
or segment assets:

Written off of property, ~ #Mi$i¥1%  BE

plant and equipment R - - - - - 10 10
Interest income MERA (506) (157) = = = (20) (683)
Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments, interests in MizE: ERMBEETREAIHEERE REE

associates, finance lease receivables and deferred tax assets. Nl R EREREREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=A=+—HIFZ
10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. REm R D EBER (&

(CONTINUED)
Geographical information

Trading of goods is carried out in the PRC. International air and sea
freight forwarding services are carried out in Singapore, North and
South America. Finance leasing is carried out in the PRC. Trading of
securities, money lending and brokerage services are carried out in
Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on the location of the operations of the
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is
presented based on the geographical location of assets.

it & &

AEBRPRETEEE M R %ﬁﬂﬂ
3~ db 32N R mE 3 N 1T BB A 2=

BiEER - Eﬂﬁfﬁf?]ﬁ’s\ﬂpliﬁﬁf’
%"A, EERELIRE IR E B

=\ Ty
\—H

AEBENBEFPURABEHDEEFK
BHEES AREFRDEEER T
REEMAERES-

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
HERE F R FRBEE

2017 2016 2017 2016
“E2—tf T RF ZB-tF ZITF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT
North and South America EEMREEM 4,480 3,556 - =
PRC H 385,561 465,788 1,559 1,017
Hong Kong B 33,372 16,631 79,203 10,212
Singapore s 2,162 2,233 18 =
425,575 488,208 80,870 11,229

Note: Non-current assets excluded regulatory deposits, interests in associates,
available-for-sale investments, finance lease receivables and deferred tax

assets.
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10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10.0BZRIHBER (&
(CONTINUED)
Information about major customers FEEFEH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing WHF’EEfLAT%)E’“JEZL& R[N
over 10% of the overall revenue of the Group is as follows: B2 z=EiE10%
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
- Customer A! - B 106,063 N/A2 7~ 38 2
— Customer B’ -REZ 250,880 183,022
— Customer C! -BFA N/A2 T 38 F32 127,161
— Customer D' -BPT N/A2 718 f32 113,431
L Revenue from trading of goods segment g KB BB M2 Was
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 2 FA 75 8 B AR P M A AN R A el I
revenue of the Group for the relevant period. HBiE10% °©
11. OTHER INCOME 1. Ete g A
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Continuing operations HERSEXER
Interest income from KETFIIEE 2 FEHA
- bank - #R17 188 180
— overdue trade receivables - BHAE 5 FEYGRIA 938 503
— promissory note receivable - WA R’ 4,246 =
Write-off of other payable 88 H 4t pE A 3018 7,240
Service income from money lending business & B {& B ¥ 7 2 IRFE U A 38 1,170
Government grant (note) T B (B &E ) 6 26
Exchange gain P U 2 281 -
Sundry income I A 435 29
13,372 1,908
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, a government grant of fad: B2 —+F+-_A=+—RHItFE"
approximately HK$6,000 (2016: HK$26,000) was granted to the Group in INER B SR 0K —IE B R BN AT B S I
relation to the job credit scheme in Singapore on the condition that the JfF % B 496,000 7T ( — & — /X4 : 26,000
Group has made CPF contributions in Singapore. The government grant BIL) c AEEBRFMEZ R RATESH
has been recognised in the same periods in which the expenses were M MEESZRNHEE 2B/ EE
re(ognised_ R 2R HAEAER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=A=+—HIFZ

12. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 12.FABH (&E)
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
it Tt
Continuing operations BESEER

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at 4 R | (518 ) Jh4& 0B

after charging (crediting): (5t A) TF B IBEBIZER:
Staff costs E B KA

— directors’ emoluments (note 13(a)) -EEME (KTsE13()) 11,021 11,520

— other staff costs - Hfb{fE B A 22,297 16,837

— retirement benefits scheme contributions — — R 4K18 A5+ &1 4 7%

(excluding those for directors) (TBREREEHE-Z) 1,014 832

Total staff costs B B A M5 34,332 29,189
Auditor’s remuneration % HRT B & 1,148 1,043
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment# 2 « F /= & X & T E 3,658 3,076
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  HisE¥ % « B E & & E 58 10
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE HERRE2EE

plant and equipment 44 -
Net foreign exchange (gain) loss SMNE (Uzs ) B8 58 (281) 151
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR X 2 FEK A 349,675 412,749
Minimum lease payments under operating W AZEMERE TFEELE

leases in respect of office premises and HEZ&EHESE

staff quarters 18,570 19,052
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS® AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Note:
(i) The discretionary bonus is based on the relevant individual's

performance and the Company’s performance and profitability and
the prevailing market conditions.

(i) Tan Xiangdong and Li Yang are also chief executives of the Company
and their emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by them as chief executives.

(iii)  Other benefits represented rents paid for directors’ quarters.

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2016: four) were Directors whose emoluments
are set out in (a) above. The aggregate emoluments of the

B.EERTHREAZMERES
M€ (@)

(a)

(b)

EERTHARNE ()

M &E :

(i) BBEEATHIERNEBALRR AL
RIXERBNENART SR RE
Rc

@iy FWRARRFBIRBARBITRER
HEXRBZHE BERREREE
TR A BT S 2 PR 7S BT S A9 2 B

@iy Htv@FEREEEEXMNEE-

NBE-F—tER-F—AE
ToAST-ALEE LEES
HESXREHREAHE -

BEME

AEEREZaTFATBRENA
—E—REF: Pﬂ%)ﬁ% W&
B & R £ ()& 7 ° ﬁﬁ?—%/\

remaining one (2016: one) individual were as follows: T (== /\ﬁE —Z)ZH& 8
EEH YT
2017 2016
—E—t# —TAE
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
Salaries and other benefits e kEAEF 3,040 1,280
Retirement benefits scheme ROKGEFET 8 3R
contributions 18 18
3,058 1,298
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For the year ended 31 December 201782 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S B ESRITRAINERESR
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' Mt s
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EER S (&)
The emoluments were within the following bands: B & 72 T 51 €6 & A -
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAH EEAH
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T £2,000,000% 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 or above 2,000,001 T8 A £ 1 —
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no REBEZZT—+tFRZFT—F
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors and the +ZA=+—BLFE AEEL
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon EREERAZ &= T AT B
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None ARSI R EMBEREB SRR
of the Directors and the employees waived or agreed to waive SEMBAREE 7 REN K ERBE R
any emoluments paid by the Group during the years ended 31 B-REEZZT—EFER=ZFT—RF
December 2017 and 2016. FTZA=+—HLFE UBEER
BEMESREREAEEENMZ
ERB & o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FREH A X
2017 2016
—®-tE  —B-AE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FH&T
Continuing operations BESEER
Current tax: EHIN A
Hong Kong Profits Tax BB FH 775 590
PRC Enterprise Income Tax 1 FTIS AR 4,788 4,974
Withholding tax paid on distributed — R B E A RE 5K
earnings of a PRC subsidiary (Note (i) Bz BB (HEEEG)) 1,128 =
6,691 5,564
Under provision in prior years: BEFEREDIE:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RE XTI
- Rongjinda Finance (Note (ii)) — R ERE (ki) 3,289 -
— Others —H A 232 =
3,521 -
Deferred tax (note 30): EERIE (H5E30) ¢
Current year REE (2,199) (3,179)
8,013 2,385
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

*

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
16.5%).

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries, is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

No provision for Singapore and the United States of America Profits
Tax has been made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits in Singapore and the United States of America during the
two years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Notes:

(i)  According to the PRC New Corporate Income Tax Law, distribution of
profits earned by PRC companies since 1 January 2008 to foreign investors
is subject to withholding tax of 5% or 10%, depending on the country of
incorporation of the foreign investor, upon the distribution of profits to
overseas-incorporated immediate holding companies.

(i) Rongjinda Finance Lease Company Limited* (Fi&ERMEREFRAA)
(“Rongjinda Finance”) was established in Qianhai, Shenzhen. Pursuant
to the notice issued by the Authority of Qianhai Shenzhen — Hong Kong
Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone dated 10 October 2017,
Rongjinda Finance cannot fulfil the requirements entitling it to enjoy the
concessionary tax rate. Therefore, the applicable tax rate of Rongjinda
Finance was restored to 25% from the first profit making year, i.e. year
ended 31 December 2015.

For identification purpose only
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REBEE-_ZE—+F+_A=+—BHLF
ﬁ’%%ﬂ ST DR GE T ERTE R 2
16.5%:E (=T —7R"F:16.5%) °

RiEREARLMBECZERSHE ([
EAEBA]) REEMGHE 2 BEHEKGK
Bl FRERBARBA=EZENF—A—HB
R TR B25% o

AEAEETEREBEE T —tFR=F
—RNE+_A=+—AI-MEFELHM
IR T N3 2 36 FI B2 & R B E A R 1) B
SRR A BTN REFBRE R
B ) 15 75 1 S B 4 o
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(i) RBHBEFEREMAETE  ERRTIEM
PRIz EERERA RS RS FEAT
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TR - R FZINBIRE E MR LAER
€

(il MeEMEEEARAR ([MESERE])
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REESEREEREMZ PR _FT—
FrATRZBHN BeEMEREREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

14. FRIEH A (&)

FRAZABHAXEGGBEREME
Y as R AT 51 2 BR B AT A (B 1R ) 3Rk

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
(loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows: W
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit (loss) before tax BRERDE A (E518)
(from continuing operations) (REFELEFS) 32,538 (16,464)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries EHMAEERELE 2
operating in other jurisdictions MEBARRATRERE P2 (831) 2,775
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% IR AN BT 15 55 5 R 25%
(2016: 25%) (*? N 25%)
FTE 2 HIE 8,134 (4,116)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BHRAZ 2 RGETE

for tax purpose 2,712 2,354
BEARBBAZ BB E

Tax effect of income not taxable

for tax purpose (7,106) (3)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss PARKEBEIMETE - (214)
Tax effect of the exemption granted —AFENB AR ERES 2T

to a PRC subsidiary B e - (765)
Tax effect of share of losses of associates SEEEARBECHBEE 360 1,793
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZMEBE BB E 2,294 561
Under provision in prior years hfii&ﬁéﬁ?ﬁ 3,521 =
Withholding tax on distributed profits of BB A R B 2 TR &

subsidiary operating in the PRC Z TBHIE 1,128 =
Re-measurement of deferred tax due to HAERARERSEERTE

change of applicable tax rate EIET IR (2,199) =
Income tax expense FTAS T B X 8,013 2,385

Details of deferred tax are set out in note 30.

EFEFRIBF BN TE30
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For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

15. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATION

i)

i)

Investment in associate classified as held
for sale at 31 December 2016

On 20 October 2016, a repurchase request to the major
shareholder (the “Guarantor”) holding approximately
29.92% interest in the then issued share capital of Pets Best
Japan Co., Ltd. ("Pets Best”) was made for 8,300 shares
of Pets Best in accordance with the terms specified in the
subscription contract (the “Subscription Contract”) as set
out in note 21. The abovementioned investment in associate
with carrying amount of approximately HK$10,760,000,
which were expected to be repurchased by the aforesaid
major shareholder of Pets Best at the consideration of
approximately Japanese Yen (“JPY"”) 159,241,000 (equivalent
to approximately of HK$11,041,000) within twelve months
from 31 December 2016, had been reclassified as asset held
for sale at the date on the repurchase request made.

The disposal was completed on 20 March 2017 and resulted
in the Group recognising a gain on disposal of asset classified
as held for sale of approximately HK$281,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Discontinued operation

On 17 December 2015, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
in relation to the disposal of entire equity interests in
Graceful Mind Group Limited (“Graceful Mind”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, which together with its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Graceful Mind
Group”) carried out all of the Group’s operation in relation to
manufacturing and sales of coal products, for a consideration
of HK$10,000,000.
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5. 278R/FFHEZEERE

BERERIEEEER
RZEBE—RE+ZA=+-—
HoEABEHEZHKE LD
ARE

B E21RTE R =ZF — <
F+A-_t+H BRERBEY
(IRBADH])RATRHZIERE
# B Pets Best Japan Co., Ltd.
([Pets Best ] ) & By B 21T A
#929.92%Em K £ BRRE ([
BRAI)ELEE DS, 300/ Pets
Bestfifp 2 Bk FHiBREE 4
10,760,000/ 7T Z IR B & R Al 2
KERHBER_E—A"FE+=A
—t+t—H#sF+=_EARA L
iltPets BestZ £ B R IZ KB L)
159,241,0008 jt ([Bcl) (48
£ %)11,041,000/8 7T ) B [E - 7
EREHEREREREFH DA
BRFELEEE-

HEZTECDOR _-_ZE—+F=H
—t+HEEA BEAERREE=
Z—+F+-_A=+—HItFE
BRLEDEAREHEEEZ
W %5 49281,00078 7T °

i) ERLREX

R-ZZE—AFE+-A++H ' KQT
H—FZBUE=AREEERRRAE
EWBARKEEEREERAA ([1
Bl EREMBARGEEH#E
@ ETASEMBEHREER
HERKERZEE) 2 25T
B E W KE /10,000,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

15. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 5. 2 8ARFHEZEERA
HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED F&EM REX®
OPERATION (CONTINUED)

ii) Discontinued operation (Continued) i) DRIEREER (&)
The disposal was completed on 24 March 2016, on which HEFEER-_T-—XE=A
date control of Graceful Mind was passed to the acquirer. iy plvit= A E@EZH%‘EEEZTI%ME
Following the disposal of Graceful Mind, the Group BEETWES REEERE K
discontinued its operation in manufacture and sale of coal SEERIEHREREEERED
products. Pl X
2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHEIT
Loss for the period Hf 2 B8 (740)
Gain on disposal of the discontinued REEERIELEER 2
operation (note 33) Wz (B#E33) 8,539
Profit for the period from BRI R E A 2 HiRE R A
discontinued operation 7,799
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=-A=+—HIFZ

15. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 15. 2 8ARFHEZEERA
HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED BERERIELKEXEL @)
OPERATION (CONTINUED)

ii) Discontinued operation (Continued) i) DRLEREER (&)
The loss in relation to manufacture and sale of coal segment BT —AR"E—A—B&=ZZT—~X
for the period from 1 January 2016 to 23 March 2016, which F=ZRA-T=HILHE FERER
has been included in the consolidated statement of profit or HERK DB 2 BB (KB AL
loss and other comprehensive income, was as follows: EERkEMEERRER)NAT

Period ended

23 March
2016
HE—_ZT—XRF
=ER= + H
1EHARE
HK$'000
FH&IT
Revenue & -
Other income H b A -
Administrative and other expenses TR H fth B (403)
Finance cost Bl & Bk AN (337)
Loss before tax R B Al ES 18 (740)
Income tax FriS %t =
Loss for the period Hf 2 B 18 (740)
Loss for the period from UTEEESRIEEEER
discontinued operation ZHIBEEE:
attributable to:
— owners of the Company S YNEIE Z =N (244)
- non-controlling interest —JEE AR A A (496)
(740)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

15. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 5. 7 BARIFLHECEERE
HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED BREOKRIEREER &)
OPERATION (CONTINUED)

ii) Discontinued operation (Continued) i) DRIEREER (&)
Loss for the period from discontinued operation included the KE BRI EER 2 B EB
following: T

Period ended

23 March
2016
HE-_ZT—RF
=AZ+=HIE
HA S
HK$'000
FiBT
Depreciation of property, M BEREETE
plant and equipment 256
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment  J& (< & ## §5 55
Staff costs B B R 91
During the period from 1 January 2016 to 23 March 2016, EZEZ—A~"F—HA—H&EZ=F
Graceful Mind Group recorded net cash outflows from —ANF=ZAZ+=HILHE R
operating activities of approximately HK$1,000 and made no SEEKEFHHFRSRLF
contribution to cash flows in respect of investing activities and EEA1,0007%8 7T K I S L% BB &)
financing activities. The carrying amounts of the assets and MR EEEEH RS RETR/ - 7
liabilities of the Graceful Mind Group at the date of disposal BEEEREEZER2EERBE
are disclosed in note 33. Z EREERERMFESS -
16. DIVIDEND 16. R 2
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 ARaREE_T—+tF+=-_A=+—H
December 2017, nor has any dividend been proposed since the IEFE IR S EREMRE - BB W
end of the reporting period (2016: nil). HHIRA R EmEOR AR E (ZZE—R
FoE)o
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For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

17. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

17.8REF (B1)
REFARCKRILEEER

ARBREBEANEBEERERNREETRT
(E18) ThiRIB A T BB &

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET T T
Profit (loss) A (E5E)
Profit (loss) for the purpose of basic and HERERNREERT (BE)
diluted earnings (loss) per share s 2w (EE)
(Profit (loss) for the year attributable (KRR AHEE AEMNLFRRF
to owners of the Company) (E18)) 24,533 (10,540)
2017 2016
—E—+tfF T —RF
‘000 ‘000
T F A
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary RERERNRBERT (BE)
shares for the purpose of basic and M5 2 5 AR 0 < 15 21
diluted earnings (loss) per share 7,264,566 7,084,238

The computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because the
exercise prices of those options were higher than the average

market price for both 2017 and 2016.

EITE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=HA=1+—HILFE

17. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 17.2REF (&E) 5

For continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
from continuing operations attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

Profit (loss) figures are calculated as follows:

ARBFEBEANEBERHBELEEBESRE
ANEERT (FBER) DR IA T 2URE

(=1
>t

mA (R BB ENT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to RRAEVEB AR E AR
owners of the Company (E8) 24,533 (10,540)
Less: R
Profit for the year from discontinued BRI 5 2 F N Al
operations - (8,295)
Profit (loss) for the purpose of basic and MIFEREEBZERELRR
diluted earnings (loss) per share from B RA (BE)MmE 2%
continuing operations (E#E) 24,533 (18,835)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued operation
is HK0.12 cents per share in 2016, based on the profit for the
year from the discontinued operation of HK$8,295,000 and the
denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings
per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 = F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ BMERZE
Furniture

and Office Motor Leasehold
fixtures equipment vehicles  improvements Total
BRREE BOERSE RE HENERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAR FAT FAT TET

cosT KA

At 1 January 2016 R_E-—~"E—A—H 354 544 11,321 477 12,696
Exchange realignment S - (5 (116) - (121)
Additions NE 49 317 2,608 - 2,974
Written off i (17) (3) - - (20)

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZZF—1R%F

TZRA=+—-8k

—Z—+5-f-H 386 853 13813 477 15,529
Exchange realignment 5 A% 3 19 123 - 145
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) Wl B AR (Mz34) 6 1332 - - 1,338
Additions RE 417 90 821 - 1328
Written off s (47) (136) = - (183)
Disposals e - - (1,157) - (1,157)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F

+-A=1-H 765 2,158 13,600 477 17,000
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZitERAfE

AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2016 RZE—7~E—-A—-H 111 210 1,652 119 2,092
Exchange realignment 5 A% = Q) (46) = (47)
Provided for the year ENEE 124 210 2,583 159 3,076
Written off ik 8) (2) - = (10)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZT—RF

+-A=+-8k

“Z—t%-A-H 27 417 4,189 278 5,111
Exchange realignment 57 A% 1 12 79 - 92
Provided for the year ENEE 214 465 2,820 159 3,658
Written off s (29) (96) = - (125)
Disposals HE = = (213) = (213)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F

+-A=1-H 413 798 6,875 437 8,523
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 RZB—t%

+-A=1-H 352 1,360 6,725 40 8,477
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE

+-A=1-H 159 436 9,624 199 10,418
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18.

19.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

S == HILFE

18. M=% -HERKHE =

¥ BERREED REEREE

on a straight-line basis at the following useful life and rates per RATAEAFRRFERGFRINE:
annum:
Furniture and fixtures 10% - 33.33% RMREE 10% —33.33%
Office equipment 10% - 33.33% WRERME 10% —33.33%
Motor vehicles 16.67% — 33.33% R 16.67% —33.33%
Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease or three HEWMERE HEFHN=F
years, whichever is shorter (AEREERE)
INTANGIBLE ASSET 9 .8\|IEEE
Money
lending
license
ME MR
HK$'000
FHET
COST AND CARRYING VALUE B K SR ENE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, RZE—XRF—-—H—H"
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 —E-—RE+ZA=+—8"
—tF—-—A—BK
E—+F+=-A=+—H*H 811

The license has a legal life of 1 year but is renewable every year
at minimal cost. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group
would renew the license continuously and has the ability to do
so. Various studies including product life cycle studies, market,
competitive and environmental trends, and brand extension
opportunities have been performed by management of the Group,
which supports that the license has no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the provision of services restricted by license are
expected to generate net cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the license is considered by the management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The license will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead, it
will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired.
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19.

20.

EEEIERARAR 201751k

Notes to the Consolidated Fincncial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 = &

INTANGIBLE ASSET (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2017, management of the Group determines that
there are no impairments of the cash-generating unit containing
the license with indefinite useful life.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit containing the
license is determined on a value in use calculation. Management
of the Group prepared a cash flow forecast based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period, and
discount rate of 16.59% (2016: 16.59%). The forecast for the
budgeted period was based on the approved loan agreement

e PR HRR MR

—tFF—A=F—HILFE

0 .8\BIEEE (&)

R-F—tE+-A=+-8 AREE
EEETHESAARRERFN LR
B2 T B B S TR

@’éﬁi‘ﬂﬁﬂzfﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁuz—ﬂﬁllﬂﬁﬁéﬂ
REMAEZEREEEE -AKEE

BENRE IETH:EﬁEEﬁFEJZETEQTE%
EHIRSRETAA - REEIEEH16.59%
(ZZF—7R"F:16.59% ) - THEHRH 278
BT ERRIRE BRI 2 EE

entered before the reporting date. Management believes that any RipmEmiEL - EEERE MBEERZE
reasonably possible change in the discount rate would not cause MERBAREHEIrSETHESERZ
the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit containing a ReEFBENZRAERBRRARESELSE
license to exceed the recoverable amount of the cash-generating i 2 AT Y [E] & 58 o
unit.
GOODWILL 20. B8
HK$'000
FHET
COST DN
1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and RZZE—RF—H—H"
1 January 2017 ZE—R"Ft+tZA=t+—HK
—ET—+F—HA—H
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) e BB B~ A (BYEE34) 71,582
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+_H=+—H 71,582
IMPAIRMENT BB
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, R-_ZE—A~F—H—H
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 —E-RE+ZA=+—H
S o S =3
—E—+&+=-A=+—H =
CARRYING VALUE R E
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tF+-_H=+—8H 71,582

At 31 December 2016

RZE—RF+-_A=+—H
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20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

21.

Goodwill was allocated to the Group’s cash generating unit
("CGU") of regulated financial services business. The acquisition
was completed on 14 August 2017, details are set out in note 34.

The recoverable amount of regulated financial services business
has been determined based on the value-in-use calculation with
reference to a valuation performed by independent professional
qualified valuers not connected to the Group. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management of the Group covering a 5-year period, and
a discount rate of 16.89%. Cash flows beyond 5-year period
are projected using 3% growth rate. The discount rate used
is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
CGU. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted revenue from regulated financial services business,
such estimations are based on the CGU's past performance
and management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of
CGU. In the opinion of the Directors, no impairment was necessary
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

S == HILFE

20.%%(@)

HEEIEEAEEXRE SRR E
i‘*%ﬁi?i SR ([REELEM]) -

WER—_ZE—tFNA+HEBEEX " FE
SR HIFE34 ©

XRECRMRBEB 2T REERER
REREENEEE W2 ZHREE
BREZBUEXSERMEERET
ZEE - -ZAEERERNAEEEEEi
HEAFHRzMBREEFEHZRSRE
TEORI - R Bh IR %K 7516.89% < B 18 T F Hf
MZREMER3%ERERESFH
ﬁ%%%ﬁ%%HWI&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi
EXELFHENETERR - ERBER
E’]ﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬁ“/ﬁ&fﬁuﬁrfﬁi//lL)\//m
H EREERRESRREEBEED
faE W ZbFTER RS EE BB
EREMEBEUTISERNBAHEL -
ERBERAREMZERRZEMAIER
REHK ISR ELSEML 2KRE
BEBRRCEESEML L HERKOEE-
EERB BE-_T—+HE+_fF=+—
HIEFEEFIRME"

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. RBE QAT 2=
2017 2016
—E-tE  —E-AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Costs of investment in an associate iR/ B = 059N - 123,507
Share of post-acquisition losses and DIEWEEEE R
other comprehensive expenses HtemAx - (27,604)
- 95,903
Reclassified as assets classified as held for EFOBEADBARBELE
sale (note 15(i)) 2 EE (MFE150)) - (10,760)
- 85,143
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=-A=+—HIFZ
21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21. REBE RN E 2w ()
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no interest in associate. RZE—+tF+-A=+—H0 x&£ER
Details of the Group's interests in associates as at 31 December B N B EE A S c R =T — X
2016 are as follows: F+ZA=1+—H AEERBEQRZ
REFBNAT:
Proportion of ownership
interests or participating
Country of shares and voting power
Name of entity Form of entity incorporation Class of shares held held by the Group Principal activity
N AEBRERARRELY )
ERZR {5 LB R KERHER SERBRATRZLA  TEER
2016
“E-RE
Directly held
57 44
East Favor Global Investment Incorporated The British Ordinary 49% Investment holding
Limited ("East Favor”) (note (i) A Virgin Islands }
REBHREARAR(RE])  HMKY ZERUFE LRk REER
(BH3E()
Pets Best (note (ii)) Incorporated Japan Registered capital 14.98% Provision of pets insurance
. N L . services in Japan
Pets Best (P &£ i)) EalifAv RA HMER R ARG L E R R
Indirectly held
%%E%
HK CPV Green Energy Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 49% Investment holding
(note (1)
E%mtﬁ ERERAR (W) Wi i Lak REER
CPV Green Energy Technology Foreign-investment ~ PRC Registered capital 49% Research and development of
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited* (note (i)~ enterprises solar power products, solar
photovoltaic products and
o _ o L semiconductor )
TR (RIERAR  HERkELE e HMER ABEER AG#ERERR
(H&EG)) FERHE
Qinghai CPV Green Domestic enterprise  PRC Registered capital 41% Research and development,
Energy Co. Limited* (note (i) manufacture and sale of solar

power module products and
the operation of photovoltaic
power plants in the PRC

EREARMBRRARLDE (W) ENtE e HMER REBUZAGEERERT
B EEREEURARER
Qinghai Taima CPV Green Energy Domestic enterprise  PRC Registered capital 29% Manufacturing of photovoltaic
Technology Co., Limited * power generation system,
(note (i) and the construction,

operation and management
of photovoltaic power plants

in the PRC
EORBRANERNEERAA  ERcE i HHER NG ES D E I
(MEEG)) &%)(%MZE& EER
£

3 The English name is for identification purpose only. i BEXETBEEHER -
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21.INT

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

ERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

On 13 March 2017, Kang Yong International Limited (“Kang Yong"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Honghu Group Limited, the major shareholder
of East Favor, to dispose of its 49% equity interest in East Favor at a total
consideration of HK$120,000,000. The consideration has been satisfied
by (i) a cash consideration of HK$30,000,000 and (ii) a promissory
note consideration of HK$90,000,000, bearing annual interest of 6%
per annum and repayable on the first anniversary date after issuance.
The disposal was completed on 20 March 2017 and resulted in the
Group recognising a gain on disposal of an associate of approximately
HK$29,420,000 during the year ended 31 December 2017. Legal and
professional fee directly attributable to the disposal of interest in the
associate amounted to approximately HK$21,000 has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017.

On 26 February 2016, Esteem Sun Limited (“Esteem Sun”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into the Subscription Contract with
Pets Best, a company incorporated in Japan with limited liability, pursuant
to which Esteem Sun agreed to subscribe for 8,300 shares of Pets Best,
representing 14.98% equity interest in Pets Best (the “Subscription”),
at the consideration of Japanese Yen144,154,400, equivalent to
approximately HK$9,935,000. The transaction cost was approximately
HK$2,019,000.

The subscription was completed on 1 March 2016. Since the Group has
designated a person appointed as a director in the board of directors of
Pets Best under the provisions stated in the Subscription Contract, the
Group is considered to have ability to exercise significant influence over
Pets Best. Pets Best was then considered as an associate of the Group and
has been accounted for using equity method.

Subject to certain conditions specified in the Subscription Contract, Esteem
Sun has an option (the “Put Option”) to request the Guarantor to purchase
back Esteem Sun’s shareholding in Pets Best at a pre-determined price
based on a formula. By a notice dated 20 October 2016, Esteem Sun

exercised the Put Option.

The abovementioned investment in associate was reclassified as assets
held for sale on the date on which the notice exercising the Put Option
was delivered. Esteem Sun’s shareholding in Pets Best was repurchased
by the Guarantor on 20 March 2017 at a consideration of approximately
JPY159,241,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,041,000). The
disposal was completed on 20 March 2017 accordingly and resulted in the
Group recognising a gain on disposal of asset classified as held for sale of
approximately HK$281,000 during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21.

The summarised financial information in respect of an associate,
East Favor and its subsidiaries, which is material to the Group, is

set out below. The associate is accounted for using equity method.

REEENT 2R (5)

B RN S B AT A T SR A R
BRI ERE RN T 2
N FME REREALR

East Favor and its subsidiaries RERHEKEATR
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current assets MBEE N/A
FEA 195,208
Non-current assets FERBEE N/A
TEA 158,691
Current liabilities mel B & N/A
RiEHA (203,074)
Non-current liabilities EREEE N/A
TEA (28,496)
Period ended Year ended
20 March 31 December
2017 2016
BE-Z—t& BE_ZT— %
=A=-+HLE +=ZA=+—H
i IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Revenue for the period/year B EE 2 Was - 34,375
Loss for the period/year M FE 2B (4,455) (21,160)
Other comprehensive income (expense) HifE FEZHEMEEmYA
for the period/year (T H) 1,022 (13,400)
Total comprehensive expense HE FEE2AEX LA
for the period/year (3,433) (34,560)
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21.

The reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented above to the carrying amount of the interest in the

associate is set out below:

S == HILFE

REEENT 2R (5)

A ERF 2 B ERHEE BN B2 D A
ZHERSEE A HRRMT

2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FH&T
Net assets of the associate BENA 2 BERE N/A
8 A 122,329
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEERREREMBARZ N/A
interest in East Favor and its subsidiaries BB 2P FiE A 49%
Goodwill e N/A
B A 25,202
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest REEBRREZEREEE N/A
in East Favor iE H 85,143
The financial information and carrying amount of the Group's REEREE QR (TNBERNEXNREKA

interest in an associate that is not individually material and is BEANR) a2 MEEN REEES
accounted for using the equity method are set out below: Fan -
Year ended 1 March 2016
31 December to 20 October
2017 2016
Bz
—E—tF ZT—RF
+=A =—A—HB=®
=+—H1 —E—RF
FE +A=+H
HK$000 HK$'000
TR FH&T
The Group's share of loss for the period AEE EGHREEE N/A
B A (1,242)
The Group's share of other comprehensive — ZN& & fE (5 i H b 2 E UL A N/A
income for period ~EA 48
The Group's share of total comprehensive AEEEGCHBERZES H N/A
expense for period TiE A (1,194)
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —TE—R%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in ~ AEBER —ETEKREE A F 2
an immaterial associate classified as held REE (DERFBELE) N/A
for sale TiE A 10,760
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For the year ended 31 December 20178 2 =F —+F+ A=+ —HIFZF

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 2. AtHERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FH&IT
Equity instruments RAETHA

Listed equity investment in London, R BH EHRAERE - EA
at fair value (note i) FEFE (HE) 7,062 6,287

Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong, RBEBBIE LT IRAEFH - 1=K
at cost (note ii) AEHE (B &Eii) 38,250 38,250
Less: impairment losses recognized B ERRZBEESE (30,750) (30,750)
7,500 7,500
14,562 13,787

Notes: B &

i) The Group's listed equity investment represented 9.09% equity interest i) REBE 2 FTRAREERBE RN —
in a company listed in Alternative Investment Market of London Stock HRBAEFRXIABZERETS ETRA]
Exchange as at the end of the reporting period. The listed equity F#99.09% M HE o E TR AR E AR FEE
investment is measured at fair value and is classified as level 1 fair value BERpEAE—HMATEE (RHIES) -
measurement (see note 8). Fair value gain of the investment approximately HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE K
HK$775,000 (2016: loss of HK$2,690,000) was recognised in other &2 A FERZELT75,0008 T (ZF—K
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 December 2017. 4 ¢ E5182,690,00078 70 ) 7A H b 2 T W =

=
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

ii)

In 2002, the Group, through an acquisition of a wholly-owned subsidiary,
acquired 30,000,000 promoters’ shares in Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal
Sci-Technology Company (“BBJB"”) (the “Promoters’ Shares”) of RMBO.1
each at a consideration of HK$38,250,000, which is equivalent to 2.18%
of total issued share capital (including H shares and Promoters’ Shares) of

BBJB as at the end of the report period.

BBJB is a joint stock company with limited liability incorporated in the
PRC with its H shares listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Board”). The Promoters’ Shares were unlisted share
capital issued by BBJB when it was initially listed on the GEM Board in
2000. According to the Company Law in the PRC, the Promoters’ Shares
were not transferable within three years from the date of incorporation of
BBJB on 29 March 2000. In the absence of active market, the Promoters’
Shares are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be

measured reliably.

In prior years, the Directors were of the opinion that the recoverable
amount of the available-for-sale investments was significantly below its
original cost, an impairment loss of HK$30,750,000 was recognised in
profit or loss. At 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of available-for-
sale investments of approximately HK$7,500,000 (2016: HK$7,500,000),
net of impairment loss was available-for-sale investments of approximately
HK$30,750,000 (2016: HK$30,750,000). No impairment was recognised
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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&Mt B A 7] A38,250,0007% ;LA E B A
30,000,000f% 3t RILA S BERFEHEKRHE
RAR ([EAFR]) EREMBEARK1T
ZERARG (BEARNK]) - BERE
EHRIEASREBITRALE (BIEHR
R AR )2.18% °

UARERAERPEFMELZ RN ERE
ERA HHREBBH AR S ER A A
GEM ([GEM J) ET - ARG BILAE
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—+tF+ZA=+—H AHEEREY
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=-A=+—HIFZ
23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 3. B mEREERE
All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract HEZHBERBRAMERIZEOERRRE
date over the lease terms. #) B EIETE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Finance lease receivables JiE U gt & 7 & FE 224,166 256,034
Less: allowance for impairment B M R R
of finance lease receivables (22,756) (22,184)
Finance lease receivables, net Rl R E M E I - F 5 201,410 233,850
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBEERNITA:
- Non-current assets —JEmEBEE 7,673 37,410
— Current assets —mBEE 193,737 196,440
201,410 233,850
The movements on the allowance for impairment of finance lease FEWmEHEREREREEH T :
receivables are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
At 1 January m—H—H 22,184 =
Exchange realignment R 572 -
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE - 22,184
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8” 22,756 22,184

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

BERENK BREENRZEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF ZE—+F “E—RF
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TEx AT
Finance lease receivables comprise: FEhmEHERERRE:
Within one year —ER 195,230 204,480 193,737 196,440
After one year but within —FRERBFER
two years 7,840 31,746 7,673 30,263
After two years but within MERBRAEFRA
five years - 7,303 - 7,147
203,070 243,529 201,410 233,850
Less: unearned interest income N VIGER ON (1,660) (9,679) - =
Present value of minimum lease EREERENR2RE
payment receivables 201,410 233,850 201,410 233,850
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23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 23. Bl mERERE 9)

Effective interest rates of the above finance leases range from
5.1% to 6% per annum. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016,
finance lease receivables are secured over the motor vehicles and
plant and machinery leased and for certain corporate lessees,
equity interest of the lessees as additional security.

Before accepting any finance lease arrangement, the Group
assesses the financial strength of the lessee and considers the
credit limit granted to the lessee. In addition, the Group may
request for the guarantor with strong financial status where
necessary.

As at 31 December 2017, finance lease receivables before
allowance for impairment of approximately RMB149,410,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$179,127,000 (2016: approximately
RMB38,981,000, equivalent to approximately HK$44,518,000)
was past due. Included in the carrying amount of the above
finance lease receivables as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is an
individually impaired receivable of approximately RMB18,981,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$22,756,000 (2016: approximately
HK$22,184,000) which impairment was made due to a customer’s
default in payment. The Group has taken legal actions against this
customer and considered the legal opinion from an independent
legal adviser during impairment assessment. For the remaining
past due amount of approximately RMB130,429,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$156,371,000), subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, partial settlements were received and repayment
terms and schedules have been negotiated and agreed between
the Group and the lessees and as such there is no default in
repayment thereafter. Accordingly, the Directors considered no
impairment loss needs to be recognised.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of finance lease
receivables and considers the finance lease receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired relate to finance lessees for whom
there was no recent history of default. As at 31 December 2017,
the age of the finance lease receivables was within three years
(2016: within two years) based on the effective dates of the
relevant lease contracts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=-A=+—HIFZ
24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. B 5 R H b fE W =R IE
2017 2016
—ZT—+tF A S
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FH&T
Trade receivables arising from trading BEEXBE 5 EWFIE

business 159,743 129,260
Less: allowance for impairment OB E R (1,460) (1,449)
158,283 127,811

Trade receivables arising from the securities #HANRHEKDERTELZ
and futures brokerage business =&/ 14,089 =
Prepayments TE 1 5K IB 1,905 1,702
Deposits and other receivables e & H fth FEUGRIR 9,319 4,054
183,596 133,567

The Group's trade receivables arising from trading business include
trading of goods, consultancy services from finance leases, and
international air and sea freight forwarding services with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$153,007,000, HK$4,316,000
and HK$2,420,000 respectively (2016: HK$121,886,000,
HK$5,025,000 and HK$2,349,000 respectively).

The Group’s trade receivables arising from securities and futures
brokerage business include cash clients, Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited (“HKFECC”) and
brokers with carrying amounts of approximately HK$157,000,
HK$3,198,000 and HK$10,734,000 respectively (2016: N/A).
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (contnuep) 24. BZ R HMEWRIE (&)

The Group allows an average credit period normally ranging
from 30 days to 180 days (2016: 30 days to 180 days) to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debt) presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period, which
approximates the respective revenue recognition date.

$El%%ﬁf£%§}52ﬂ?i’ﬂ;i‘iﬁﬁ Iy
N F30BE180B (ZZF—~F:30B=
180H ) zflc L FARMEIR (B AF
auﬁz ﬁEu/LEHH)Hz%TE!HHEEJZFEH&
B 538 (EMRRREE) RS-

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FHEIT

0-30 days 0%30H 587 1,506
31-60 days 31£60H 141,839 58,472
61-90 days 61290H 15 65,697
Over 90 days HBE90H 15,842 2,136
158,283 127,811

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$4,479,000 (2016:
HK$4,146,000) which were past due at the end of the reporting
period and for which the Group has not provided for doubtful
debt. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, approximately
HK$4,316,000 (2016: HK$4,020,000) of the past due balances
were settled.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

The settlement term of trade receivables arising from the securities
brokerage business are two trade days after the trade execution
date. The trade receivables from HKFECC and futures brokers are
repayable on demand which represent amounts deposited for trade
execution purpose.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The aging analysis of trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired based on the invoice date at the end of reporting date,
which approximately the respective revenue recognition date, is as

e PR MR

—tFF—A=F—HILFE

4. BZREMEKRRE @)

RiEHRE IR (AR YRR B HE
M) zBEZRHCBREREREZES
FEMRIABRER AT AN T -

follow:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
31-60 days 31£60H - 1,005
61-90 days 61%290H - 1,005
Over 90 days HBiE90H 4,479 2,136
4,479 4,146

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The movements in allowance for doubtful debts of trade
receivables were as follows:

ERmfEEREZE S EKRES K
LERAEBAEERFEERLE LB
YRF -IRRBRATER BEEEEG"
HMREEERTEENEE Z5&E%
TR AR 280 - MEZ RIS
et IR E R -

BHRBFBELZREBREEZHWT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THER FHET

1 January —H—H 1,449 1,449
Exchange realignment HE 5, 58 & 1 -
31 December +=ZA=+—8 1,460 1,449

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed on a regular
basis.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

25.

26.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group's trade receivables
are determined individually whether they are impaired. The
individually impaired receivables are recognised based on the credit
history of its customers, such as financial difficulties or default
in payments, and current market conditions. An accumulated
allowance for doubtful debts of trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,460,000 (2016: HK$1,449,000) has been recognised as at 31
December 2017.

4. B REMEWRFIE &)

RERE R AL B IZER ISR R
ERABE S EWRRIEETE BRME-.
EREREZEMRBERBRETFEZ
EE s (B 75w g R BFE) &
BRI MRER- R _E—+F+_A
=t+—H ZE5EKFBEBREREE
% %) 51,460,000 70 (=T — N F ¢
1,449,000/ 7T ) B HER °

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 25. FEXRZKRE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER T T
Held for trading investments: BEXHKRE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —RNEBEAB LM ZBRATB S 16,380 115,266

Held-for-trading investments are stated at fair value. The fair
value of the listed securities has been determined by reference
to published price quotations in active markets. Loss on fair
value change of held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$1,624,000 (2016: gain of approximately HK$29,443,000)
has been recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group disposed
of certain listed securities and realised loss on held for trading
investments of approximately HK$3,294,000 (2016: gain of
approximately HK$1,529,000) has been recognised in profit or loss.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

The bank deposit of approximately HK$59,000 was pledged by
the Group for the purpose of issuing a guarantee by the bank to
a service provider for security against default payment as at 31
December 2017 (2016: HK$54,000). The pledged bank deposit
carried at fixed interest rate of 0.25% per annum for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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27.BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances - trust and segregated accounts

The Group receives and holds monies deposited by clients and
other institutions in the course of the conduct of the brokerage
business. Such monies are maintained in one or more segregated
bank accounts. The Group has recognised the corresponding
liabilities to respective external clients and other institutions as
trade payables (note 29). However, the Group does not have
a currently enforceable right to offset those payables with the
deposits placed.

Bank balances - general accounts

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and
bank balances that are interest-bearing at prevailing market
interest rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.30% (2016: 0.001% to
0.35%) per annum and have original maturity of three months or
less.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
which are subject to foreign exchange control regulations or not
freely transferable:

27.R{TEBRREE

RITEBR-EERBIRF

AEEEETRERBHEEEARTE
B REMBBIFRZ HIA - % EHRIBTY
FER —ERZEBILRTERS - A&
EEERHIIBEL REMEENIER
BERBZEMNFR (H5E29) - A &
SERRBITBARMGETREHZER
SRR E A] 58 BT REF o

RITHESH - —RERF

BITHEHBERESEEASEMFREE K
IRITEERR RIS FFE0.001ER
030FE (=ZZF—/"F:0.001EX0.35EF)
e BRIHBA=ZM@AZHINAT -

RITERRRESPAANTBAZIINEE
il 22 I PR B S AN AT B R 2 FROR

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&ET FAT
Amounts denominated in: AT 5 B ¥ EHE < 3OE -
RMB AR 64,520 47,667
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28. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 28. EWER KA A

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FAT

Loans receivables, repayable within one year BR—FRNEE M D HE A

and classified as current asset MBEE R ER

Secured B 80,000 80,000
Unsecured K 260,000 190,000
340,000 270,000
Interest receivables JE U Al B 22,464 9,647
362,464 279,647

As at 31 December 2017, secured loans with carrying amount
of approximately HK$80,000,000 (2016: HK$80,000,000) were
secured by shares or assets charges provided by borrowers. The
Group does not hold any collateral over the unsecured loans. The
remaining carrying amount of approximately HK$260,000,000
(2016: HK$190,000,000) represents unsecured loans certain of
which are accompanied by personal or corporate guarantee. The
loans advanced to the borrowers under the Group’s money lending
business normally had loan periods from 6 to 18 months (2016:
6 to 18 months). The loans provided to borrowers bore interest
rate ranging from 8% — 15% per annum (2016: 8% — 15% per
annum), depending on the individual credit evaluations of the
borrowers. These evaluations focus on the borrowers’ financial
background, individual credit rating, current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the borrowers as well as the
guarantees and/or security from the borrowers (where necessary).
The loans provided to borrowers are repayable in accordance with
the loan agreements, in which the principal amounts are repayable
on maturity and the interests are repayable half-yearly or on
maturity.
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28. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of loans and interest receivables,
presented based on the dates which loans are granted to
borrowers and interests are accrued.

28. ENERKEFE (&)

AT BERREUYEHE 2 BRI DT - Toi%
AERARLERZBHRREELF R

EX TR

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Within 90 days 90K A 4,994 126,586
91 — 180 days 912180k 6,802 2,495
181 — 365 days 181E365K 199,131 150,566
Over 365 days B iB365K 151,537 =
362,464 279,647

As at 31 December 2017, loans and interest receivables of
approximately HK$206,924,000 (2016: HK$53,459,000) were past
due. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, approximately
HK$66,668,000 of the past due balances were settled. The
remaining past due amount of approximately HK$140,256,000 are
due from several borrowers with whom the Group is negotiating
practicable repayment terms and schedules. The Directors assessed
their creditworthiness and financial position and are of view that
no impairment loss is necessary. The Group's neither past due nor
impaired loan receivables mainly represented loans granted to
creditworthy customers for whom there was no recent history of
default. Accordingly, the Directors considered that no impairment
loss is necessary. Save for the aforesaid secured loans, the Group
does not hold collateral over other balances.
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

— et — A =g el

BEEREMEMNKE

2017 2016
ZE—tF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FH&T
Trade payables arising from the securities Py ’K%‘&Hﬂ IR EB2

and futures brokerage business B 5 R 47,985 =

Trade payables arising from international air 2 & BB fiji 2= 5LE§H&%Z
and sea freight forwarding services B ZENRIE 1,066 1,037
Earnest money from finance lease receivables fEUELE TS 78 2 RE S 7,458 6,946
Value-added tax payable eI E 540 500
Accrued charges EstE R 9,153 8,300
Other payables H th & 5 5/ I8 43 6,621
66,245 23,404

The Group’'s trade payables arising from securities and futures
brokerage business include margin clients, cash clients and clearing
houses with carrying amounts of approximately HK$44,931,000,
HK$2,898,000 and HK$156,000 respectively (2016: N/A).

For trade payables, no aging analysis is disclosed for the Group’s
margin and cash clients and clearing house as these clients were
carried on an open account basis, the aging analysis does not give
additional value in the view of the nature of business of securities
brokerage. Also, the settlement terms of clearing house is two
trading days after the transaction dates.

The average credit period on international air and sea freight
forwarding services is normally ranging from 30 days to 90
days (2016: 30 days to 90 days). The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled
within the credit timeframe.
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables from
international air and sea freight forwarding services presented

2. EFREMENRE &)

AT R HE MEARKE BEREMZERE
LEERK B 5 RNFRIBNRE DN

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: TIREZHHES
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
0-30 days 0£30H 439 423
31-60 days 31£60H 2 3
61-90 days 61£290H 1 6
Over 90 days HBE90H 624 605
1,066 1,037

DEFERRED TAX

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

30. 4E SE B IH

A BREN S  EERIRAERZ DM

financial reporting purposes: ONSE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Deferred tax assets EEFRIHE E 5,689 3,179
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEEE - =
5,689 3,179
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30. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 30. IERERE B (@)
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) REAFER FFEBRAZEIBZRLEN
recognised and movements there on during the current year and BEGE(EE) REEZFHFMAOT
prior year:
Fair value
Accelerated change in held Impairment on
tax for trading  finance lease
depreciation Tax losses  investments receivables Total
BEXFRE REHERUR
MERERE RBER PRREL-E BHE H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THERL TER TER TER
At 1 January 2016 R=2-A%-A-H 1,021 (4,505) 3,484 - -
(Credit) charge to consolidated BEAER GIA) MR
profit or loss (1) (4,838) 4,849 (3,179) (3,179)
At 31 December 2016 and RZB-"E+=A=+-H
1 January 2017 kZZ—+F-f—-H 1,010 (9,343) 8,333 (3,179) (3,179)
(Credit) charge to consolidated Bt (GrA) Mk

profit or loss:
- current year movement —EHEELE (354) 8,687 (8,333) = =
- Remeasurement of opening balance — Ei#1 & E 32 (M)

(note i) - - - (2,199) (2,199)
Exchange realignment EH A% - - = (311) 311)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—t5+t-A=t-H 656 (656) - (5,689) (5,689)
Note: B 5 -

(i) Re-measurement of deferred tax due to change of applicable tax rate of () ERcEREZEANEEHMETELT
Rongjinda Finance (note 14(ii)). MEEHar =2 (MF14G0)) ©
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30. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2017, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$296,177,000 (2016: HK$251,324,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of estimated unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$3,976,000 (2016: HK$56,624,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised of the remaining tax losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The estimated unutilised tax losses of approximately
HK$294,995,000 (2016: HK$250,492,000) may be carried forward
against future taxable income indefinitely under the current tax
legislation in Hong Kong.

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to subsidiaries
in the PRC amounted to HK$242,000 (2016: nil) that will expire
within five years from the end of the reporting period.

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to a subsidiary
in Singapore amounted to approximately HK$940,000 (2016:
HK$832,000) of which the use is subject to the agreement of
the tax authority and compliance with certain provision of the
tax legislation in Singapore and may be carried forward against
future taxable income indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as
it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The Group
had no other unrecognised deductible temporary difference as at
31 December 2017 and 2016.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$3,990,000 (2016:
HK$18,026,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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31.SHARE CAPITAL

31. ®RA&

Number of Number of Share Share
shares shares capital capital
RA#E Rip#E i &A
2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt “T-RF Bt “TRF
'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tk THER FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SREE.SELZ EAR
Authorised: EE
At 1 January and 31 December R-A-AR+=A=+-AH 50,000,000 50,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
At 1 January w—A—H 7,264,566 5,264,566 363,228 263,228
Issue of shares upon subscription (note i) WRERETRG (K - 2,000,000 - 100,000
As 31 December W+=-A=1+-H 7,264,566 7,264,566 363,228 363,228
Note: B 5

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 18 September 2015,
27 October 2015 and 9 December 2015, the Company entered into share
subscription agreements (the “Share Subscriptions”) with the independent
third parties (the “Subscribers”) of the Company that the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue and the Subscribers conditionally
agreed to subscribe for 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.05 each at the subscription price of HK$0.18 per share.

The conditions were fulfilled and the completion of the Share Subscriptions
took place on 3 February 2016. A total of 2,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company were allotted and issued at cash consideration of
HK$360,000,000, before transaction costs.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The 2012 scheme

On 22 May 2012, the Company adopted the 2012 Scheme (the
“2012 Scheme”) under which the board of Directors may at its
discretion offer to any Director (including non-executive director),
employee, suppliers, customers, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to the
Group, shareholders of any member of the Group or any entity in
which the Group holds an equity interests and any other group
or classes of persons or entities who have contributed to the
development and growth of the Group (“Participant”) to subscribe
for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Scheme. The principal purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to
provide incentive or rewards for the participant’s contributions to
the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of
adoption of the 2012 Scheme, unless a refresh approval from the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained. However, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2012 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

The subscription price of the option shares granted under the 2012
Scheme shall be a price to be determined by the Directors being
not less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii) the nominal value of
a share.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 32. B IR AESTE (5

The 2012 scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any individual under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The 2012 Scheme does not contain any requirement of a minimum
period and the board of directors of the Company may in its
absolute discretion impose a minimum period requirement for
each option granted will be made by the board of directors of
the Company on a case by case basis and will not be made to the
advantage of the Participants.

The 2012 Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing from the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme to 21
May 2022, after which no further options will be granted but the
options which are granted during the life of the 2012 Scheme may
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue
and the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall in all other respects
remain in full force and effect in respect thereof.

Options granted under the 2012 Scheme must be taken up within
21 days of the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the
grant.

At 31 December 2017, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2012 Scheme was 218,002,090 (2016: 365,242,090), representing
3.00% (2016: 5.03%) of the shares of the Company in issue as
at the end of reporting period and the date of this report. The
maximum number of the shares in respect of which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme
is 726,456,626, representing approximately 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of this report.
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e
32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 32. BT E ()
The 2012 scheme (Continued) —E-—FHE
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share TREBAQRNRRE =T ——F5r3
options granted under the 2012 Scheme during the years ended RHECERERBEZE-ZE—tF R
31 December 2017 and 2016: E-RF+_A=+—RHIFEZ#
&
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tF+-A=+—HLEE
Number of share options
BRE#A
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed  Outstanding
Exercise price as at during during during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period per Share 1.1.2017 the year the year the year the year 31.12.2017
R=2-t% RZ2-t%
al +2B=1-8
RHAH TES SRTEE HRTE FRRH FRfTE FRRK FRRA HRATE
HKS
BT
Director 17.7.2015 18,068,060
17.7.2015 to0 16.7.2018 0.30 60,308,060 - = (42,240,000) = (Note)
5% “T-RaftAttA ZT-RFtATtAE
ZZ-\$tA+/H
Employee 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 166,934,030 - - (105,000,000) - 61,934,030
(-] “Z-AFtA+HtR ZET-AFtATtRZE
- N\EtATRE
Consultant 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 o0 16.7.2018 0.30 138,000,000 = = = = 138,000,000
B -5 tA+tA ZT-RFtATtAZE
ZZ-\$¥tA+5H
Total 365,242,090 - - (147,240,000) - 218,002,090
@t
Exercisable at the end of the year 218,002,090
RERATRE —
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.30 - - HK$0.30 - HK$0.30
METFHTRE 03087 030%T 030787

Note: It includes 8,034,030 share options granted to Mr. Wang Jian, who
resigned as a director of the Company on 24 January 2017 but has been

a director and the legal representative of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company since then.
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e
32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 32. BIRAERT & (&
The 2012 scheme (Continued) —ER-CFF8a
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share THREBARARARE T — —F5 3
options granted under the 2012 Scheme during the years ended BEvEREREBEE_ZE—tF R
31 December 2017 and 2016: (Continued) E—RNE+_A=Zt+t—HIEFEZ#
B (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_Z—R"FTHA=1T—HLFE
Number of share options
BRELE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed QOutstanding
Exercise price as at during during during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period per Share 1.1.2016 the year the year the year the year 31.12.2016
R-Z2—R%E RZZ— /\ﬁ
-A-H +-A=+-
RiBH e BRiTEE HATTHE ERRL FRFTE FRRM EREK HAT @
HK$
BT
Director 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 70,788,060 - - (10,480,000) - 60,308,060
% “Z-AFtA+tR ZET-AFtATtRZE
ZE2-N\EtATiRE
Employee 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 to 16.7.2018 0.30 190,834,030 = = (23,900,000) = 166,934,030
&8 “T-R5tA+tA ZET-RftATtAZE
ZZ-\FtA+H
Consultant 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 to 16.7.2018 0.30 138,000,000 = = = = 138,000,000
B “T-R5tA+tA ZET-RfEtATtAZE
ZZ-\FtA+H
Total 399,622,090 - - (34,380,000) - 365,242,090
@zt
Exercisable at the end of the year 365,242,090
RERATR —
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.30 - - HK$0.30 - HK$0.30
WETHFER 0.30T 030 0307
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 =F—+F+=-A=+—HIFZ

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conTINUED)

The 2002 scheme

On 18 March 2002, the Company adopted the 2002 Scheme (the
“2002 Scheme”) under which the Directors may at its discretion
offer to any director of the Company (including non-executive
director), employee, suppliers, customers, any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support
to the Group, shareholders of any member of the Group or any
entity in which the Group holds an equity interests and any other
group or classes of persons or entities who have contributed to the
development and growth of the Group (“Participant”) to subscribe
for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of the
2002 Scheme. The principal purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to
provide incentive or rewards for the Participant’s contributions to
the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of
adoption of the 2002 Scheme, unless a refresh approval from the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained. However, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2002 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

The subscription price of the option shares granted under the 2002
Scheme shall be a price to be determined by the Directors being
not less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii) the nominal value of
a share.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 32. B IR AESTE (5

The 2002 scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any individual under the 2002 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The 2002 Scheme does not contain any requirement of a minimum
period and the board of directors of the Company may in its
absolute discretion impose a minimum period requirement for
each option granted will be made by the board of directors of
the Company on a case by case basis and will not be made to the
advantage of the Participants.

The 2002 Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing from the date of adoption of the 2002 Scheme to 17
March 2012, after which no further options will be granted but the
options which are granted during the life of the 2002 Scheme may
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue
and the provisions of the 2002 Scheme shall in all other respects
remain in full force and effect in respect thereof.

Options granted under the 2002 Scheme must be taken up within
21 days of the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the
grant.

At 31 December 2017, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2002 Scheme was nil (2016: 49,145,426), representing 0% (2016:
0.68%) of the shares of the Company in issue as at the end of
reporting period and the date of this report.

No share options had been granted or exercised under the 2002
Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
49,145,426 share options have been lapsed during the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
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The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conTINUED)
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tEF—A=1T—HILFE

32. BREFTE (®)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options granted under the 2002 Scheme during the years ended

31 December 2017 and 2016:

—ERE_Fi8 s
TREBAQARE-TT-Fitd
BHZBRERBE-2—LFR=
T-AFt-AZt+-ALFEZE
&

=

i

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-—Z—tF+=-BA=+—HLFE
Number of share options
BREZE
Outstanding Forfeited Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise price as at during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period per Share 1.1.2017 the year the year 31.12.2017
RoB-t# RoB-t#
-A-H +=A=+-H
R BH &S BRITEE W RATRE FRRER FREN HRTE
HK$
BT
Other eligible persons 20.8.2007 20.8.2007 to 20.8.2017 0.5768 29,585,058 - (29,585,058) -
EtAARAL ZERLENACZTH ZERLEN\AZTRE
ZE2-+ENAZTH
7.9.2007 7.9.2007 t0 7.9.2017 0.6297 14,670,276 = (14,670,276) =
“ER+ENALA “ERENALRE
—tENALH
28.9.2007 28.9.2007 to 28.9.2017 0.6788 4,890,092 - (4,890,092) -
“ERHEAACTAR ZEEHEAA-TARE
Z2-tFAAZTNR
Total 49,145,426 = (49,145,426) =
&3t
Exercisable at the end of the year -
RELA{TR —
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.603 - = =
MEFHTEE 0.603ETC
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #2 =%

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conTINUED)

— et — A =g el

32. RS E (&

. p— N e
The 2002 Scheme (Continued) —EE_For8l (&
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_ZT—RFET_A=1+—HILFE
Number of share options
BREE
Exercise Outstanding Forfeited Lapsed Outstanding
price as at during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period per Share 1.1.2016 the year the year 31.12.2016
RZZ-RE RZZ-R%
-A-H +ZA=+-AR
Rit B e BRITER HATTE ENL FREM HATHE
HKS
BT
Other eligible persons 20.8.2007 20.8.2007 t0 20.8.2017 05768 29,585,058 = = 29,585,058
HaERAL “23+ENAZTR ZZZtENAZ+REZ
—+FNA=TH
7.9.2007 7.9.2007 t0 7.9.2017 0.6297 14,670,276 - - 14,670,276
“ERtENALA “2ZtFENAtAZE=%
—tFAALA
28.9.2007 28.9.2007 to 28.9.2017 0.6788 4,890,092 - - 4,890,092
“RELEAAZTN ZERLEAAZFNBEZ
3] F—+FNAZTNA
Total 49,145,426 = = 49,145,426
it
Exercisable at the end of the year 49,145,426
RELAITE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.603 = - HK$0.603
MEFHTEE 0.603 7 0.603% T
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As detailed in note 15(ii), the Group discontinued its operation of
manufacture and sale of coal products upon the disposal of the
entire equity interests in Graceful Mind on 23 March 2016.

Consideration received

SRR

—tFFt—A=F—HILFE

IVT\

33.HEHEB AT
AN EE 1S ET R R — N F=
A=-+=H tﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ'\i\ﬁﬁﬂﬂg?ﬁ PINCS
BEEREEEERHEERREMZE
@0

Fr A&

HK$'000
TAET

Cash received

FTUR &

The net liabilities of the Graceful Mind Group at the date of the

disposal were as follows:

10,000

HEEBNLERM AEFEMT

23 March 2016

—T—RF
=A=-+=8
HK$'000
FH&T
Property, plant and equipment M WE R&E 2,633
Prepaid lease payments, classified as DERIERDEECEMNES
non-current assets 11,161
Goodwill RS -
Prepaid lease payments, classified as current assets DB ARBEE 2 FBENE S 264
Inventories i=¢ 10,319
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H At FE R 7,052
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRE 2,867
Trade and other payables B 5 I CH b FE - 5R (19,825)
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder —FHB ARz —BIFERBREER
of a subsidiary (29,946)
Tax payables RS BEIR (5,061)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEBEER (20,536)
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 3B.HEME AR (&)
Gain on disposal of the Graceful Mind Group: HEREREE 2 W
23 March
2016
—E—R%F
=A=+=H
HK$'000
FHEIT
Cash consideration received RS RE 10,000
Net liabilities disposed of LEBEER 20,536
Cumulative exchange differences on translation MRENE AR 2 GRS
of foreign subsidiaries reclassified from equity to BIINEBARIBERENSEE
profit or loss on loss of control of the subsidiaries ~ Bz 2 RETEH =58 1,947
Non-controlling interest in a subsidiary of PARER —REIM B A A 2 IR A R S
Graceful Mind (23,944)
Gain on disposal (note 15(ii)) & WeEs (BERE15(3)) 8,539
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BRBARZRER
23 March
2016
—T—RF
=A=-+=8
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration ReRE 10,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposal of B HERITEKRRES (2,867)
7,133
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 24 January 2017, China Best Financial Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with an independent third party of the Group to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Zhongrong International
Securities Company Limited, Zhongrong International Futures Co.,
Limited, Zhongrong International Investment Consulting Company
Limited, Zhongrong International Asset Management Company
Limited and Zhongrong International Corporate Finance Limited
(collectively referred to as the “ZR Companies”) at a consideration
of HK$200,000,000 (“the Acquisition”). The Acquisition was
completed on 14 August 2017 and has been accounted for using
the acquisition method. The Group obtained the control of ZR
Companies by acquiring 100% equity interests. ZR Companies
were principally engaged in various financial services business in
Hong Kong. Details of the Acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 January 2017 and 14 August 2017.

The Group is laying a foundation for transforming its principal
activities into the financial service sector. The Acquisition is one of
the steps taken by the Company to implement this transformation.
The Acquisition provides an excellent opportunity for the Group to
participate in the financial services and asset management market
in Hong Kong which, going forward, is expected to increase the
Company’s value and benefit the Company and its shareholders as
a whole.

The Acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition
method.

Consideration transferred

34. WK B 2 F

RZE—+F—A=-+WA &AQ7—
HezEWNBARBEEZESRIERERA
RIEAREBEZBIE =G LB
LA L B PPl B B RE 5 A PR A &)~ AR
BREHEBRAR PRIERIREEH
BRAG HRBEBEEEEEERA
ARTRBERERR AR (F5iE[F
BAEl) 22 HMEETRAN REA
200,000,000/ 7T ([WEEIE]) - Wk
FER_ZT—EFNA+THETZRL
EFERABEEIE AEBEEBKES
AR AE IS AR B A B 2 PR o R B A
AEERNBEBNEZBCRRBER -
WHEEBEZFBIRARRI B A
T—+tF—AF+HBER=_ZT—tF
NA+HEBZ R e

AEBETIERTEXRBREBRGES
B FER - WEEHESARAEMIL
BRERZ— WBEEEBRAEE
RERELE2ESBRELEEEET
B2 R¥% BHIRARREKIE AR A
ZBERSARARBRERERE-

WEEREEREEERK-

BENAE

HK$'000
TAT

Cash consideration (Note)

Note:

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately HK$1,431,000 have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and have been recognised as
expenses in the current year and last year, within the administrative expenses in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 34. B MY B 2 7] (#)
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of RUBEHBRRAZEERER
acquisition
14 August
2017
—tF
AA+HEH
HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB k& 1,338
Regulatory deposits %Eiﬁﬁ 1,987
Trade and other receivables (Note) B 5 REMEWRRIE (M) 78,302
Held for trading investments RERSFKE 31
Bank balances and cash — general accounts RITHEBREEREE ——REP 72,128
Bank balances — trust and segregated accounts RITEA—EERBILERP 41,065
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b e 58 (66,433)
128,418
Note: Bf & -
Included in the balance was amounts due from former related parties of the ZR EHRATRERPRBRAAAERESRE
Companies of HK$53,600,000. 53,600,000/ 7T ©
The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of acquisition amounted RKEBH B REMERKREZATER
to HK$78,302,000. The gross contractual amounts of those trade and other 78,302,000 L - RN HE ZSEWHES R
receivables acquired amounted to HK$78,302,000 at the date of acquisition. H th & WK IE 2 88 & 40 © 8 7378,302,0007% 7T
There are no contractual cash flows expected not to be collected at acquisition TEHAW &S XIR @ m=E T e R UK B HR el -
date.
Goodwill arising on acquisition WBEE2HE
HK$'000
FHB7T
Consideration transferred EEAE 200,000
Less: recognised amount of identifiable net B BB BRI EEFECEBRASHE
assets acquired (128,418)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 20) Wk E & 2 8 (KsE20) 71,582
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwill arising on acquisition (Continued)

The Group recognised the excess of fair value of the consideration
transferred over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired as the goodwill. In addition, the consideration paid for
the combination effectively included amounts in relation to the
benefit of revenue growth and future market development of ZR
Companies. These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to be
deductible for tax purpose.

e PR HRR MR

—tFFTZA=F—HILFE

34. WEEMIE A | (&)

WIRELE2EHE (&)

AEESEEREAFERD KB
BRI EEFEQFEEL D ER
REE W AREH M ZRK
ERFEABTRARKRAERMARRK
MBBRRFN 2 - S H R
EmEEBRR RESELATAR
BRI B EECRBIRE-

BERZRBELEZEHEBR AN EBG
BHA®E-

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEFEENESRE FE
HK$'000
FH& T
Consideration transferred BEEERE 200,000
Less: bank balances and cash — general accounts W IRITEBRRE e - —REP (72,128)
127,872

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in the profit for the year is approximately HK$3,935,000
loss attributable by the ZR Companies. Revenue for the year
includes HK$1,269,000 generated from the ZR Companies.

Had the acquisition of the ZR Companies been completed on 1
January 2017, total revenue of the Group for the year would have
been approximately HK$429,790,000, and profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$18,471,000. The pro-forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2017, nor is it intended to be a projection
of future results.
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35.

36.

PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the promissory
note receivable of HK$90,000,000 with principal amount of
HK$90,000,000, formed part of the Group’s consideration
receivables in relation to the disposal of East Favor to Honghu
Group Limited in 2017. As the promissory note is to mature on
20 March 2018, the amount is classified as current assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017.

The promissory note is secured by 9,608 shares of East Favor,
representing 49% of the equity interest of East Favor at the
issuance date. The promissory note bears interest at a rate of 6%
per annum. As at 31 December 2017, the sole shareholder of
Honghu Group Limited, Mr. Deng Junjie (“the Guarantor”), has
provided guarantee in favour of the Company for the payment
of all sums payable under the promissory note. The Company
and Honghu Group Limited entered into a supplementary deed
(the “Supplementary Deed”) on 20 March 2018. Pursuant to the
Supplementary Deed, the repayment date of the promissory note
of HK$90,000,000 was extended to 20 March 2019 with other
terms remaining unchanged.

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

35.

36.

B W& 5 R B

R-E—+FE+-_A=+—H &5
790,000,000/ 7T 2 F& WA H FE R #Y
90,000,000 8 LR EEREKAEB R —F
—+tFERELETREEEGRAA
BURREBZ —HD BARALZER=-Z
—N\EF=ZA=1+HIH EHESEA=Z
—+tF+- A=+ BAZEAHHMRR
RADBEARBEE-

L R AR 129,608/% X 10 (HEE M
17T B EIERE AR 2 49% ) (EHK I o AL E
BIRFFE6 % B R —+tF+=
A=+—H BHEEEEGRAAIE KRR
BENEE ([ERADUEARR AZ R
ABEEBBREBETRNZE SERE
ER-R=ZZT—N\F=ZA=+8 ' AQA
HEES EEMAER AR L2 E ([
FEE]) o BIEM IR - 90,000,000/
TEALEEZEFRAPERE T —H
F=ZRAZ+ B HtERagsrE.

REHED
REBERAEHEA

RIREHR  AEBREN N5 HRE
M2 AA e &SROz BgxER
SAEEWT

2017 2016

—E—tF ZT—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Within one year —FR 14,266 16,876
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_ZERF (BEEEMSF) 19,801 2,821
34,067 19,697

Operating lease payments represent rentals of the Group for
its office premises, directors’ and staff's quarters. Leases are
negotiated for a range of one to three years and rentals are fixed
for a range of one to three years (2016: one to three years).
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group enrolled all Hong Kong employees in the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500
(2016: HK$1,500) per month, to the MPF Scheme, in which the
contribution is matched by employees.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC and Singapore
participate in defined contribution retirement schemes and
Central Provident Fund Scheme organised by the relevant local
government authorities in the PRC and Singapore respectively.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage
of its payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions
under these schemes.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of approximately HK$1,125,000
(2016: HK$955,000) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.
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BB CEERAEEEED
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AEBZBBAFHMKRALS%  BEE
E&=®A1,5008T(ZF—RE:
1,500/ 7T ) A58 18 & 71 & F th 3K 82
BE ZHREE-

AEERTERFINERLEZHB R
A5 B2 i o B R T AR R
BT B8 P& I 2 8 FE R BUR ARG 8 )
PRATERFE - ZFHBARARS
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38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 3.HAEFKE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has entered into the following transactions
with related parties:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2016, loan interest of
approximately HK$337,000 (2017: nil) was payable by the
Group to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of
Graceful Mind before the disposal.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

BREEMBRREMESARES
Sh AERBETRERBES R TR 5

(@ REBEE_Z—R"E+=-_A=+—
BEFE AEBREEZAE
HERZ —FHEB AR 2 IEERK
&3 A B FF 2 49337,00078 7T
T F )

(b) EEEIEAE B

EENEMNETEEEAEBRFR
ZB&uT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Short-term benefits 2 Al 13,950 12,677
Post-employment benefits B B 12 1 A 129 141
14,079 12,818
The remuneration of Directors and key management is EERTEZEEEE 2 B EH M
determined by the remuneration committee having regards to ZESL2ZRAARRAETISZBE
the performance of individuals and market trends. BEETE °
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 30. KATBEEMNE A BFHIE
OF THE COMPANY

Nominal value
of issued and
Place of fully paid Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiaries and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BT BRATRAER NG igeTe)
KWEARER EE 3t AEE/ZRER BORAEE/ EMERLH TERE
Directly Indirectly
E& k3
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZB-tF T F ZB-tf ZZ25F
% % % %
Jet Air (Singapore) Private Limited Singapore SGD500,000 - - 93 93 Air freight forwarding and
R (MR BERAR IR 500, 00057 1% 7T brokers for airline and
shipping companies
ZENRMERMBAR
far
Jet-Air (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$142,000,200 - - 100 100 Trading of securities and
ROTE(FB)ERAA B 142,000,200 7 trading of goods
ErEERBnER
Global Star Corporate Management  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 - - Acts as administrative centre
Limited i 10,0007 of the Group
RECREEERAA ERREEZITHAL
Jet Dispatch Limited United States of Us$3,000 - - 100 100 Freight forwarding agent
America 3,000% 7T HERR
EHBERE
Qianhai Honghu Teri Technology PRC HK$110,000,000 - - 100 100 Trading of goods
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited* i 110,000,000 7 BREE
AEESERIHR ORI BERAA
Rongjinda Finance Leasing Limited*  PRC US$30,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of finance lease
REERENEFRAA i 30,000,000% 7T services and finance
consultancy services
REREEERBR
SRFARY
China Best Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100 Provision of money lending
BEHHERADA B BT services
RS R
Zhongrong International Securities Hong Kong HK$102,000,000 - - 100 - Provision of securities
Company Limited Bk 102,000,000 70 brokerage services
PRERTIFERAA REES LR
Zhongrong International Futures Co.,  Hong Kong HK$67,000,000 - - 100 - Provision of futures
Limited B 67,000,000/ 70 brokerage services
hRERELBRAA REB GBI R
3 The English name is for identification purpose only. * R ZIEER-ET -
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 30. K ATBEFEMNE A AFHIE

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

All subsidiaries are companies incorporated with limited liability in
the respective jurisdictions.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at
the end of both years or at any time during both years.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

(%)
FMEMBRARY AERBRDAERET
MARZzBRAT -

Rz fEFEFEFRzmEFEER
o] By [ 3 4 B /B8 2 R B 1T R DA
B EHES-

ERAIEZAREHNBRRALES
RRUAEEXZEANEEBRIEY
BEIHBRARI-EFERA  EHEEAMHK
BARZHBHERBBARITE -
RI|BEBMR AR EEMB AN EEL
TERZWBAR -ZEMBAR X
REBHBMT -

Number of subsidiaries

MEAREE
31 December 31 December
Principal activities Principal place of business 2017 2016
—E—iF —T-RF
FTEXB FTEEXBE t=ZA=+—HB +=-A=+—H
Investment holding BVI
RE R REBRELES 9 9
Hong Kong
B 1 1
Inactive The PRC
TS H 1 -
BVI
RERLES 3 3
Samoa
e 34 1 1
Hong Kong
e 3 -
18 14
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 30. KAFEEMNE D AFHE

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (%)
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of TERENEBEAFEZEREE 2ASE
the Group that have material non-controlling interests. EF2EMBARIZFE

Portion of ownership and

Place of incorporation and voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary principal place of business non-controlling interest non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERERFEAAER
WEARERE DR IREEE XY REELLA TREFEREEZER R FERES
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

“E-tE 2% ZEBE-t§& T ZB-t§ T F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FRT THR THT FHT

Suntech Group (note) HK/PRC - - N/A (496) N/A N/A
FEEE () B/ TEA TEA TR
Individually immaterial subsidiaries

with non-controlling interests 8 (14) (#1) 43)

ERITERZ HB AR EAEERER

(8) (510) (41) (43)
Note: Up to 23 March 2016, the Group held 55% equity interest in Suntech i BEZT—R"F=A-+=0 KEEFHE
Worldwide Limited (“Suntech”), in which Suntech is holding 100% equity FERKER AR ([{55])55%% -
interest of Gujiao City Hongxiang Coal Industry Co., Limited. FEAFBEERMAFREERAF100%
PR #E
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's TRBAREEH B R RN EE RN
subsidiaries that has non-controlling interests that are material to SHRT < IS &R EA—:—M-JL% AR ¥
the Group, before intragroup eliminations: REBERZIEERER
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Suntech Group

(%)

EE%E

3. ARAEEMB LA FE

31 December
2016
—E—RF
+t=A=+—H
HK$'000
FET

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 30. KATBEEMNE A BFHIE

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (%)
Suntech Group (Continued) EEEE#
From
1 January 2016
to the period
ended 23
March 2016
B-Z—RF
—A—H=
HE-_T—RF
=A=+=8
1EHAE
HK$'000
FH&IT
Revenue & =
Other income H A -
Expenses X (740)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company KAREE AEMGEE (244)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests R R EE 1R (496)
Loss for the period HnEE (740)
Other comprehensive expense attributable to RRABEA ARG EMEEZ H
owners of the Company -
Other comprehensive expense attributable to FE 122 AR A % P A L fth 2 TET 32
non-controlling interests =
Other comprehensive expense for the period R E M2 =
Total comprehensive expense for the period HAZEX LR (740)
Net cash outflow from operating activities BEEBEE 2R FEM (1)
Net cash inflow from investing activities KREBEABZREFERA -
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEFSMEZHRSFERA -
Net cash outflow R FREM L (1)
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interest bearing and repayable on demand.

200

40. THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. & D B 2 Bt ROR &
OF THE COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment e & 644 1,044
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 10 10
654 1,054
Current assets MBEE
Other receivables H fth E W FR B 796 963
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a) FEUR KB A R A (M ata) 895,564 847,077
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR IR 30,686 92,431
927,046 940,471
Current liability me B &
Other payables H b &N ROE 7,146 13,091
Net current assets mEEEFE 919,900 927,380
920,554 928,434
Capital and reserves & 72N % 4
Share capital & A< 363,228 363,228
Reserves (note b) & (HizEb) 557,326 565,206
920,554 928,434
Note: B & -
a.  The amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured, non- a. WK EBRRRERIFE S ML  EIEH

E‘\'/%\&ZE\&RI g
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40. THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. A QA B 2 BB MRR &K (5)
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note: B 3 -
b. Reserves b. B
Share Investment
Contributed options revaluation ~ Accumulated
Share premium surplus reserve reserves losses Total
R4 R E AR BRERE REERRE R EE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T THE T
(note)
(B 3E)
At 1 January 2016 R=F—R"§¥—A—-H 650,262 48,311 23,583 (1,101) (365,741) 355,314
Loss for the year EREE - - - - (48,600) (48,600)
Fair value loss on available- — AIHEREZ ATFE
for-sale investment B - - - (12,940) - (12,940)
Release of reserve upon REEAHRHERER
disposal of available-for-sale 2 & #EE
investments - - - 14,041 - 14,041

Total comprehensive expense £ N2 % i 458

for the year - - - 1,101 (48,600) (47,499)
Issue of ordinary share upon ~ WARBEETL AR

subscription 260,000 - - - - 260,000
Transaction cost attributable W REBE TG FELL

to issue of share upon ZR KA

subscription (2,609) - - - - (2,609)
Forfeiture of share options R AR M - - (838) - 838 =

At 31 December 2016 and R-B—RE
1 January 2017 +ZA=+-Hk
—E-+%—A-H 907,653 48,311 22,745 - (413,503) 565,206
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (7,880) (7,880)

Total comprehensive expense £ N2 % i 458

for the year - - - - (7,880) (7,880)
Forfeiture and lapse of share  EERRHE )R M | K 4%
options - - (17,378) - 17,378 -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+=-A=1+—H 907,653 48,311 5,367 = (404,005) 557,326
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40. THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

b.

Reserves (Continued)

Notes:

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in 1996 over the nominal value of the

Company's shares issued in exchange thereof.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed

surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium accounts.

41. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 20 March 2018, Kang Yong, Honghu Group Limited and
Mr. Deng Junjie entered into the Supplementary Deed to
the promissory note whereby the parties agreed to extend
the maturity date of the promissory note to 20 March 2019
(notes 21 and 35).

Further details of the Supplemental Deed are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 20 March 2018.
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41. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

(b)

On 22 March 2018, Rongjinda Finance entered into finance
lease supplementary agreements with three of its finance
lessees (the “Finance Lease Supplementary Agreements”)
whereby the parties agreed to extend the lease term of the
finance leases from two years to three years regarding the
lease principal of approximately HK$144,000,000.

On 22 March 2018, Rongjinda Finance also entered into
consultancy supplementary agreements with the same finance
lessees (the “Consultancy Supplementary Agreements”)
whereby the parties agreed to extend the term of the finance
consultancy services from two years to three years.

Further details of the Finance Lease Supplementary
Agreements and Consultancy Supplementary Agreements are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 22 March
2018.

42. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

During the current year, the Company had revised the presentation
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and considered that a presentation by

nature of expenses,

instead of by function of expenses, would

better reflect the Group's results following the further expansion
into the brokerage business during the year. As a result, certain

comparative figures are restated to conform with the current year's
presentation.
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R FMBEE

RESULTS ¥EE

Year ended 31 December

HET-RA=+-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF “E—RF —T-RfE —T-mE “E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THL FHET THT AT
Revenue Y zs 425,575 488,208 336,296 267,040 47,739
Profit (loss) before tax BRAEN (B8) 32,538 (8,665) (49,318) (28,010) (103,326)
Income tax (expense) credit s (A% He (8,013) (2,385) (1,673) (331) 2,999
Profit (loss) for the year FREF (BE) 24,525 (11,050) (50,991) (28,341) (100,327)
Profit (loss) for the year EEFRRF (EE)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VN/NGIE 2N 24,533 (10,540) (48,636) (17,538) (76,162)
Non-controlling interests e 3 (8) (510) (2,305) (10,803) (24,165)
Profit (loss) for the year FRmET (FE) 24,525 (11,050) (50,991) (28,341) (100,327)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+t=-A=+-8
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
gL f 3 SN —T-A1F —T-NF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL T THT AT
Total assets BEHE 1,163,913 1,056,715 767,040 395,823 346,758
Total liabilities BEET (76,557) (31,072) (74,021) (72,277) (86,943)
1,087,356 1,025,643 693,019 323,546 259,815
Equity attributable to owners AREHERA
of the Company Efh R 1,087,397 1,025,686 716,494 344,553 269,365
Non-controlling interests TR (41) (43) (23,475) (21,007) (9,550)
1,087,356 1,025,643 693,019 323,546 259,815
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